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"A Little Good News"
Greene County Courthounse: State of the Art, User Friendly & Completely Paid
For

By: Daniel T. Stidham, Esq.

I was excited when Don Hollingsworth asked me to write this column about the new
Greene County Cotirthouse, Don was present here in Paragould, recently, when we
had the oceasion to show off the facility during our celebration of Law Day and
during our ceremony dedijcating two of the three Courtrooms in the Courthouse. I
am pleased Don asked me to share this story with the Arkansas Bar,

The citizens of Greene County and the Greene County Bar Association are very
proud of our new Courthouse. To understand our pride, you must first be apprised of
a little history. Our "old"” Courthouse was bult in 1888, It was a magnificent
structure, in it's day, but as the years passed and as Greene County grew, it hecame
beth impraetical and fell into in a state of disrepair. Several attempts were made to
create support for the construction of a new facility, but they all fell short. Circuit
Judge Charles Light, who retired from the bench in 1973, despised the old facility
and it's inadequacies. Legend has it that Judge Light had jokingly issued an offer of
immunity, from eriminal prosecution. to any person whe would burn the facility
dowa. Judge Light's attempts to get a new Courthouse built during his lifetime
failed. He died in 1982, But ironically, his deally in 1982, coupled with the
generogity of his widow, Margarel Anne Lighl, who puassed away a few vears later,
laid the groundwork for the ultimate construction of the Courthouse.

Margaret Anne Light, in honor of her husband, in her Will, bequeathed the sum of
$£100,000.00 to the citizens of Greene County. This sum, placed in Trust, was
specifically earmarked to be used to fiurnish a Couttroom in a "new" Courthouse in
Greene County. The Will had a "sunset" provision, which atated that if a new facility
wes not built within ten years of her death, the $100,000.00 would go to an alternate
heneficiary. This gift, when combined with the gencrous testamentary gift of another
prominent family, Mack and Vestal West, gave Greéans County almost a quarter of a
million dollars to use to build a new Courthouse. Judge Light's widow passed away
in November, 1987, and the clock was ticking.

The Greene County Bar Association implemented a plan designed to gain
community-wide support for the construction of a new Courthouse, A Courthouse
Committee was selected which contained members from a cross -section of the
community as well as government leaders of the Community. This Commitise
gained wide support for the project, but the project seemed doomed when a dispute
arose between the City and the County over allocation of the proceeds of a proposed
sales tax designed to pay for the new facility.

This provided a significant challenge to the Bar if the project was to be saved.
Attomey Robert F. Thompson was ready for this challenge, and single-handedly
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brokered an agreement between the City and the County which led to a special
election on the sales tax issue. The citizens of Greene County warmly embraced the
idea of this sales tax, and the new facility was completely paid for before ground
was ever broken fo begin construction. Construction was completed ahead of
schedule, and City, County & State offices moved into the new facility in Jannary of
this year. .

The Courthouse has three (3) Courtrooms, Municipal, Cirenit & Chancery. For this
first time ever in the history of Greeae County, this year, three different Couris were
convened in the same building at the same time. All Court personnel, including the
Court Clerks, Probation Officers, and even the Prosecuting Attorney are housed in
the facility. We are even capable of having two jury trals occur simultaneously as
the Courthouse is eguipped with two jury ready Courtrooms and two jury
deliberation rooms. A bank of Wilness rooms are conveniently located outside the
two large courfrooms which make conferring with clients and witnesses easy and
cenfidential, an impossibility in the Old Courthouse,

By the way, we still have the Old Courthouse tow. Recognizing the historic
significance of the structure, the Citizens of Greene County, through private
donations and grants, have saved this beautiful structure and are restoring it to it's
original spiendor. Once again, 8 member of our Bar led this project. Thanks to
Randy F. Philhours, who organized the Greene County Courthouse Preservation
Society, the Histaric Greene County Courthouse, with it's beautifully reconstructed
clock tower, remairs as a symbol of our past.

As 1 stated earlier, Don Hollingsworth, was present when we unveiled the bronze
plagues dedicating the "Charles W. Light Courtroom” and the "Mack & Vestal West
Courtroom" in our new Courthouse. Don also served az our guest speaker, later that
evening, al gur annmal Law Day Banquet, having accepted the invitation of another
prominent member of our local Bar, H.T. Moore, who just happens to be the current
President of the Arkansas Bar. As I listened to Don's remarks during the banquet, it
was clear to me that he understood the pride in our Bar and the pride we have in our
community in achieving this magnificent goal. Thenks, Don, for celebrating with us,
and for giving us the apportimity to share "A Little Good News."
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Finding and Utilizing Forensic Esperts In Criminal Trials
By Daniel] T. Stidham, Esq.

The purpose of this seminar is to discuss the multifaceted process of first locating
and then utilizing Forensic Experts for eriminal trials. It is self evident that this topic
is a rather complex one, and covering it adequately in the context of 2 one hour
seminar will be a formidable task. Specifically, it is hoped that this discussion will
help you identify resources for locating qualified and competent experts to help you
understand the nature of forensic evidence in a particular case, the importance of
getting the right kind of expert for the specific circumstances of your case, and for
utilizing thal expert fully once his or her services are oblained.

The Tmportance of Forensic Evidence

In a nuishell, Forensic Bvidence is very powerful stuff. As we all know, it can
convict our clients quite easily. In order to represent our clients adequately, we must
be able to recognize the importance of forensic evidence and it's power of
persuasion. In order to do this, however, we must understand the nature of forengic
evidence and it's underlying scientific principles. Forensic evidénce can literally
make or break our cese herefore we must also be able 1o first recognize il, and then
when il is necessary, enlist an expert to assist us determining it's extraordinary value,
Unfortunately, physical evidence in a ¢riminal case is seldom seen by anyone
mvolved in the investigation as having any intrinsic value [1]. In fact, a literature
review conducted by Horvath and Meesig [2] showed that physical evidence is used
in less than 25% of the cases prosecuted in the United States, with the peroentage in
some regions dipping to less than 5%. Many of the agencies charged with
investigating criminal offenses, including coroners and law enforcement agencies,
are either poorly funded or poarly trained, or both, and as such, are not qualified (o
gather, or analyze, complex forensic evidence. Just to add to the confusion, we
lawyers often rely on what we think is "good" forensic analysis by so-called experts
whom we assume are either neutral, or unbiased, when in actuality nothing could be
farther than the truth. We need only look to the glaring example of the recent
malfeasance at the FBI Lab to realize the fallacy of this thinking. A forensic expert
with whom I have discussed this very topic with recently says that it is very
important to "assume nothing” when il comes to forensic analysis. This particular
forensic expert believes, as do [, that the "State's expert is never your friend."

Finding an Expert
Sources for finding forensic experts should always include the

following:
1. Direct referrals from other lawyers;
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2. Referrals from other forengic experls;
3. Experts directly mentioned in reported cases and Bar journals; snd
4. Professional Organizations for Forensic experts

Obvicusly, other lawyers are a great source of referrals for experts. These referrals
are nsually quite good in that most lawyers won't give you a referral to an expert that
they have had a bad experience with and the lawyer will be able to save you
valuable time in researching your expert. Also, experts themselves ars a good source
for referrals to experts in other areas or subspecialties. I have also found cxperts by
reading cases while researching issues for trial. This gives you good insight into an
expert since you are actually seeing how he or she testified in a case similar to
yours.

There are several professional organizations out there for forensic scientists which
are similar in purpose to the Bar Association. The American Academy of Forensic
Sciences [3] is one such organization. The academy maintains a web site and has
links to many other subspecialty sites, By visiting this site on the World Wide Wel
and the corresponding subsites you can obtain information that will send you
directly to specific experts. Although the sites do not specifically list experts and
their addresses and phone numbers, they do list officers and committees within the
organization that have names and numbers listed. In addition, the sites contain
journal articles written by specific experts in their particular fields.

Check Them Owut

The search for an expert can involve many pitfalls. One only need to recall the plight
of young Jake Brigance in John Grisham's novel A Time to Kill to realize that this is
s0. Accorditig 10 Turvey, [1] in a Chapter of his new book devoted to finding
forensie experts:

"Charlatans, frauds, and con artists frequently grace the courtrooms
with phony credenlials, often for years, withoul being discovered. Then
one duy someone asks a simple question about their Curriculam Vitae,
and the whole world comes crashing down around every case that the
"expert” has worked on. Always check professional references, and be
certain that those references and quulifications are commensurate 10 the
questions that are going to he put to the expert." [Turvey, B., "Criminal
Profiling: An Introduction to Behaviorial Evidence Anulysia,"

(London: Academic Press, 1999)

Always check the references of any expert you wish to retain, Professionals won't
mind you checking them out, and if they do, this should be a "red flag." Keep in
mind that the references listed in an expert's CV are only those references that that
particular expert wants you to see. Always try to find references ouiside the CV if
you can. Ask the expert to give you the names of lawyers with whom he has worked.
When you talk to these lawyers ask them who was on the other side. The opposing
lawyer can usually give you tremendous insight into the expert.

Always check to see if your potential expert is in good standing with his or her
licensing board and always make sure that your expert is properly certified. Don't
wait until trial to find out that your expert's Doctoral degree was from a mail order
catalog or that he is on probation with his licensing board. Don't ever accept the
word of your expert on these issues, document them for yourself,

Always be particularly lesry of experts who seek your case out, These experts may
be more interested in the notariety of the case than in the truth of the facts of the
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cage. While at the annual meeting of the American Academy of Forensic Sciences in
San Francisco last February, I learned of a Forensic Odontologist who had offered
his services to the 0.1, Simpson Defense Team claiming he had found a bitemsrk on
Nicole Brown Simpson’s back afier some of the antopsy photos had been made
public. Tle claimed that he could probably exclude O.J. as the person responsible for
making the bitemark. This would have been relatively easy for him to do since the
"mark" on Nicole's body was actally an indention in lier skin from (he clothing she
was wearing when she was murdered. 0.1.'s defense would have certainly been
much less effective had his defense team blindly gone with this "expert" who sought
them out only to be embarrassed later on. Of course we must imagine the following
colloguy to the jury: "if the bite mark don't fit, you must acquit.” Likewise, experts
who edvertise in Bar Journals should be checked extensively for both their
references and their credentials,

Make Sure Your Expert Stays in Their Field of Expertise

A good expert knows his or her limitations and the scope of their expertise. These
experts know when it's time to refer you to another expert who does have that
particular expertise. Some experts routinely testify about matters just ouiside their
areas and this can really come back to haunt you if you are not careful. Not only will
you lock foolish when the other side shows up with a genuinely qualified expert, it
will also undermine those areas where your expert was qualified to festify.

Utilizing Experts in a Post Daubert World

Many of us are frightened aboul qualifying experts in the post Danbert era. While T
won't address the specific issue of qualifying experts in this new era, T do want to
discuss the use of forensic experts whom you may not be able to qualify to testify at
trial on certain topics, hut who can assist you, nonetheless, in invaluable ways. An
example of this type of expertise is the arena of "Criminal Profiling." Criminal -
Profiling, in laymen's terms, is the building of a psychological profile of a likely
offender in a criminal case. While this type of evidence would be difficult, at best, to
gelin at tnal, it is extremely useful in helping you prepare a trial strategy and
identifying other forensic issues which are readily admissible. Profiling, as
dramatized on Television, is not true deductive coiminal profiling, I you want (o
hire a profiler to assist vou in your case and he, or she, wanls to go to the crime
soene, pick up some dirt, and weit for a flashback like the profiler in T.V.'s popular
Millennium series, get your self a new profiler. Likewise, if your profiler wants to
simply conduct statistical analysis, 1., "all serial killers are white males who drive
VW Beetles and their mother hated them," get yourself a new profiler. A true
Profiler will be trained in Forensic science and psychology and will assist you
identifving issues in your case, i.e. other mare vigble suspects, crime scene
reconstruction, identifying forensic evidence and wound pattern analysis. For an
overview of Deductive Criminal Profiling see the wehsite for Knowledge Solutions,
LLC 4] and Turvey, B., [1] "Criminal Profiling: An Introduetion to Behaviorial
Evidence Analysis.

Endnotes

1. Turvey, B., Criminal Profiling: An Introduction to Behaviorial

Evidence Analysis,” (London: Academic Press, 1999)

2. Horvath, F, & Meesig, R., "The Criminal Investigition Process and

the Role of Forensic Evidence: A Review of Empirical Findings,"

Journal of Forensic Sciences, November 1996; 41 (6): pp. 963-969

3. The American Academy of Forensic Sciences, website found at

www.azfs.org

4. Knowledge Solutions,LLC , website fonnd al www, corpus- =
delecti.com
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Stidham Seeks Justice

By Kelley Risker
Northeast Arkansas Tribune Staff Writer
February 19-20, 1999

It doesn't happen much around here, notina
small town. Capital murder cases happen far
away, to other people. They are tried in court
by other lawyers, not attormeys that we know
personally, not someone we might bump into
at the post office or grocery store. But this
time something far-reaching and big city came
uncomfortably close to home.

Though not in recent news, the case involving
the deaths of three West Memphis boys almost
six years ago still remains in the mind and life of a defendant’s lawyer, Dan Stidham.
A Peragould native, Stidham graduated from ASU in 1984 with a bachelor of
science degree in Sociology. Hig law degree was earned in 1987, and for the last 11
years Stidham has been quietly practicing law in his office on North Second Street.

Even after being involved in a handful of murder cases, though, this one was
unexpected. Appointed to the defense in 1993, Stidham admils that this particular
hemicide is the most complicated and biggest case he has ever been involved in. He
was handed the case due to a personal conflict of the West Memphis public
defender, and though the trial itself is over, the facts of the case linger,

The case itself involved the murder of three eight-year-old boys and sexual
mutilation of one of the victims May 5, 1993. The boys returnied home from school
one by one and disappenred, never to be seen alive again. Three older boys were
charged with this triple murder; enter Dan Stidham.,

Stidham represents Jessie Misskelley, a then 17-year-old with a five-year-old mental
capahility. With an 1.Q. of 72, Misskelley was diagnosed in 1993 as border line
mentally retarded. An earlier rest, done while Misskelley was in grade school,
dingnosed Misskelley as completely retarded. A fact, Stidham believes, that enabled
police to coerce his client inte a false confession.

About four months afier his appointment to the case, Stihdam realized two things:
one, there were problems with the facts, and two, Misskelley's questionable mental
capabilities, "Inisially I thought he was guilty," Stidham said. "It's difficult t
mmagine that someone would confess to something he didn'l do.”

Stidham is adamant ahont his client's innocence, though, for many reasons. Though
Misskelley confessed to the crime, many aspects of his confession did not match the
crime scene, said Stidham, Several pieces of his testimony were inaccurate with the
details of the case. For example, Misskelley stated in his confession that the killings
were at noon, whereas Misskelley and the victims were at school during that heur.
He additionally “confessed” to police that the victims were bound with brown rope
though they were actually tied with shoe laces, Additionally, some of the wounds on
the victim's body that Misskelley described did not even exist. The most interesting
aspect of the case, setting aside the conflicting issues, said Stidham, was the fact that
no physical evidence linked his client to the killings-no footprints, fingerprints,

http:/fwww.stidhamlawfirm. com/justice.html 3/16/2009

ADD 4395



Dan Stidham, Aftorney At Law: Articles Page 2 of 3

"nothing. The only link was the confession.”

"It was apparent (o me that there was a problem," Stidham said. We normally den't
question confessions except with glaring inconsistencies.”

Misskelley was "suggestible" and did not realize what to do, said Stidham. His client
was given a lie detector test immediately and prior to his confession and was told by
West Memphis Police that he had fziled. According to Stidham's synopsis of the
case, experts say that when a person of limited intellect and who is very suggestible
is told they have flunked a pelygraph test, they will often confess falsely as their
perception of reality is changed, and they sec it as their only chance to avoid getting
into trouble, please their interrogators and leave the pressure of the interrogation.

Polygraph expert Warren Holmes of Miami, Fla., was retained by Stidham and
reviewed the polygraph charts. According to Holmes, Misskelley had passed all of
the guestions about the homicides, This fact, however, was moot because lie
detector tests are inadmissible in a court of Jaw.

An additional expert, Di. Richard Ofshe, was added ot the list of Misskelley
advocates. Ofshe is a Pulitzer Prize winner for his work in the Synanen Cult in
California, making him all the more vahable in the case since the murders were
believed to be cull related. Ofshe's second area of expertise is false confessions, and
after reviewing the transcript of the confession Ofshe was convinced of Misskelley's
innocence.

The jury was not allowed to hear the compelling testimonies of these two expert
witnessess, even though crucial to the defense. The defendznts were sentenced in
February of 1994, Damien Echols was sentenced to Death Row, Jason Baldwin to
life without the possibility of parole, and Misskelley to life plus forty years for the
murders of James Moore, Steve Branch and Chris Byers. Although there was no
acquitial, Misskelley did avoid a capital murder conviction, and thus the death
penalty. Since the sentencing, Stidham has been appealing this conviction.

For a new trial, in addition to the issues previously argued on appeal, Stidham would
also rely on on the words and findings of the forensic analysis of and psychological
profile of Brent E. Turvey, MS. This criminal profiler agreed to look at all physical
evidence, autopsies, the crime scene, which had not been properly secured resulting
in a loss of potentiz] evidence. Stidham purposefully did not tell all the information
to Turvey about his client's confession or who he believed was guilty because he
wanted an independent analysis.

Turvey additionally identified several things on the victims badies that were
inconsistent with upholding the guilt of the suspects. The most integral was a bite
mark on one of the bodies. A forensic odontologist (dentist) examined the bite mark
and compared it to the dental impressions of the three suspects; none matched.
"We're hopeful that this, coupled with other evidence, will lead to & new trial for
these kids," said Stidham.

"anyone who looks at the facts of the case will come to the conclude that these kids
are innocent," Stidham said. It has become a "personal quest for justice” for this
small town lawyer. "I'm willing and eager to talk to anybody about it," he said. "1
believe so much in the innocence of my client..it's a terrible injustice.”

In 1998 Stidham received & call from the producers of the
"Leeza" show in Los Angeles, California. Ofshe and

il Turvey were invited to speak and Stidham said that he
was relucianl to appear becayse he had previcusly turned
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down two invitations to appeer on Geraldo and one on the Manry Povitch Show,
becanse "] felt they were trying to sensationalize the case and not present actual
facts," he said. Mevertheless, Stidhar agreed to participale in a taping of the show.
According to Stidham, the "show went real well, no surprises, the avdience asked
good questions. | was impressed with how it went." The program was originally
slated to air Jamnary 7, 1999, but was pulled at the last minute because of concerns
about airing the graphic details of the case on daytime television. Producers are
‘editing the show for content. Stidham was told by the senior producer that the show
will air eventually as it cost almost a half million dollars to produce. The Leeza
Show itself is ending soon and will then be syndicated, in which case, Stidham said,
the show may not air for several more months,

Stidham said that the experience of the case has "carved an impression in his life,
and until appeals are completed, he will not put the case 1o rest.
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B k|
TIWEEKLY

September 5-11, 2003

The Devils' Advocates:

How Arkansas’ West Memphis Three went from convicts to L.A.’s cause céléhre
by Stephen Lemons

Seated behind a pane of smudged Plexiglas, his white prison garb a suggestive contrast
1o the puke-colored walls of the dingy cubbyhole he’s in, prisoner #SK931, Damien
Echols, is explaining how he became Jyoti Priya Karuna, Lover of the Light
Compassion.

“That’s the name my teacher Reverend Karuna Dharma gave me,” says Echols, his voice
muffled through the wire-mesh strip along the bottom of the Plexiglas. “She’s the abbess
of the IBMC, the International Buddhist Meditation Center, in Los Angeles. Your
teacher gives you a new name once you're a novice monk, as | am. The teacher’s name
becomes the student’s last name.”

It was Franlkie Parker, enother prisoner on Arkansas® deafli row, who introduced Echols
to Zen Buddhism. Parker, known as Jusan, was executed by lethal injection on August §,
1996, despite appeals for clemency by the Dalai Lama, Nelson Mandela and others.
After Parker's death, Echols “took refuge” — was inducted as a Buddhist layperson —

= S =

with the Zen priest wh G 4 ke
had been Parker’s teachier. In 2001, Echols took the first steps toward total ordination
with Reverend Karuna,

“I practice zazen meditation, yoga and tai chi,” says Echols, 28, his dark eyes staring out
from behind wire rims that make the gaunt, raven-haired inmate lock ke a graduate
student. “Any form of martial arts is really frowned upon here, se that's oul. When I first
started, T was doing up to five or six hours of medilation a day. Now it's more Jike an
hour in the morning and an hour at night during weekdays.”

Meditating is made more difficult by the ¢haos of Echols’ surroundings. The
schizophrenie next door to him is a Jesus freak and likes to watch Benny Hinn all dayon

the shared TV set. Also, the shouting of deranged inmates never ceases, and, from what
Echols says, the majority of cross-cell confabs consist of ane inmate telling another how
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many times he’s going to stab and/or fuck him, though not necessarily i that order. All
of which is hardly conducive to spiritual porsuits.

Echols credits the discipline of Buddhism with helping him to survive being in lockdown
nearly 24 hours a day, seven days a week. He's allowed a 10-minute shower three times
a week, and every other day he’s supposed to get an hour of exercise in the yard, fhough
more often than not the guards “forget.” In the 10 years he’s been in “safe

keeping” (hence the “SK” prefixed to his number), he’s been the victim of the usual
prison bullshit — like the time & guard planted a shank in his cell and subsequently
confmed him to the hole. Were it not for Buddhism and his wife, Lorri, an architect from
New York who married Echols in & Buddhist ceremony in 2000 and now lives in Litlle
Rock, his anger at being number one of the West Memphis Three — niotorious convicted
kid killers and causes célébres — would have consumed him.

“1 had to do something about it. Zen Buddhism has allowed me to control that rage.
Without it and without Lomm, I would have given up long ago.”

Shorily after he says this, a blue-shirted guard knocks on the door to the visitor's cubicle
and tells us it's time. Three and a half hours have passed. Echols rises, places a hand
against the glass to thank me for coming. “T actually enjoyed it,” he says, seeming
somewhat surprised by the admission. As I'begin to follow the guard out the door,
Echols bows to me Japanese style two or three times, an unexpected act of humility that
both embarrasses and saddens me.

I walk out of that red-hrick sore of a building, past tall steel fercing topped with razor
wire, thinking of Echols returning to that 9-by-12-foot cell. As I head back through miles
of farmland to the relative civilization of Little Rock, I wonder how Echols’ life could
possibly get any worse.

The answer comes about a weels later when, under the cover of darkness and with no
warning, Arkansas’ Department of Corrections moves all 39 men on death row at Tucker
to a so-called SuperMax facility, some 90 minutes south, where they will each be held in
what is essentially solitary confinement. Echols® cell is now three concrete walls and a
solid steel door with a slit through which he’ll be fed. In one wall, behind glass, isa TV
set over which he has no control, He cannot even listen to classical music on his small
transistor radio because the prison's thick walls make reception impossible. It remains to
be seen if he will have access to all of the books supporters send him via his wish list at
Amazon.com.

From the cacophony of screams lo the silence of an Orwellian dungeon, Echols® trials
seem never-ending. He'll need all the strength he derives from his Zen exercises to
endure this latest ordeal. Even then, his extreme isolation from the world is especially
troubling, almost as if the prison anthorities are hoping he’ll commit suicide to save them
the trouble of executing him.

Two thousand miles west, in an especially funky little cranny of Los Angeles’ Linceln
Heights, artist Emmeric Yames Konrad is hard at work on a giant crucifix in the studio of
his townhouse apartment. Actally, the crucifix 15 still mostly in his mind and in his
sketchbook: stark black-and-white images of three murdered 8-year-olds thar will form
the head and arms of a colossal B-by-10-foot cross,

“TI've already told them [ want an entire wall,” says Konrad, excitedly. “T'm going to
spray-paint a black outline around it. In the center will be the dead kid with the bile
marks, on the bottom will be the stepfather, and below him will be the initials of the
three kids, a line of red going through them, with the stepdad’s initials below. You kiow,
like & gangbunger’s tags.™
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Konrad’s creepy conception incorporates three famous photos of Christoplher Byers,
Stevie Branch and Michael Moore, as they were in life before their bodies were pulled
from the muddy water of a drainage ditch running throngh a spooky patch of woods
known as the Robin Hood Hills in West Memphis, Arkansas, They were found there
May 6, 1993, a day after they had been reparted missing, naked and tied ankle to wrist
with their own shoelaces, like deer after the kill. The “stepfather” Konrad refers to is
John Mark Byers, known to the viewers of the eward-winning HBO documentaries
Paradise Lost: The Child Murders of Robin Hood Hills and Paradise Lost 2; Revelations
as the belligerent, mullet-headed oaf whose comic self-incriminations are lost on the.
Keystone Kops at the West Memphis Police Department.

Instead, the police alleged that the three children were murdered as part of some sort of
sloppy satanic ritval carried out by Damien Echols, then 18, and his two cultic cohorts,
Jessie Misskzlley, 17, and Jason Baldwin, 16. Problem is, the cops never had any real
evidence to link Echols, Baldwin and Misskelley to the slayings, which were especially
brutal — Christopher Byers was emasculated. Though the boys had been mercilessly
battered and mutilated, there was no blood found at the site, nor were any murder
weapons recovered. This startling lack of clues encouraged the 80-member police force
1o look to the supernatural for an answer, and they found it in Echols, a self-described
Wicean at the time who liked to wear black, lislen to heavy metal music and read
Stephen King.

With the confession of the mentally handicapped Misskelley acquired through ye olde
third degree and dufifully Jeaked to the press, and a public mood more akin to Marion
Starkey’s The Devil in Massachuseiis than Harper Valley P.T.A., the aufhorities
railroaded Echols, et al., with the aid of two pliant juries. The alt-weekly Arkansas Times
referred to them as “Witch Trials,” and the phrase “satanic panic” was bandied about.
Misskelley and Baldwin caught life without parole. Echiols got death and has been
wailing to die ever since. They're now known worldwide as the West Memphis Three.

“I wanted to bring it back to the three boys who were murdered,” says Konrad, a silver-
haired, motorcycle-tiding ex-Marine who, in paint-splattered jeans and T-shirt, looks
overy inch the artist. “I den't wanl il to just be these guys zet out of prison and it o end. 1
wat it to be these guys get out of prison, and they get the gay who did this:"

Out of the paint-and-peper ¢haos of Konrad’s workspace emerge the faces of the dead
children, rendered in charcoal, their spectral visages hovering like nightmarcs. In the
hackground, Konrad's CD player is cranking out a cover of the Stones” “Paint Tt Black”
by the L.A. band the Hyperions,

1 feel & weird tingle, like & cold salamander slithering up my spine, as I look af the
images. “T want it 1o have that feel of an icon, like the Hispanic graves where they have
the picture of the deceased. Tt's been so hard for me to do this. Once T et going, usually T
can bang stuff out, but this kills me. I have to keep walking away.” says Konrad,

Konrad is but one of about 20 artists set to participate in a show at downtown's sixspace
gallery September 6 through 20. “Cruel and Unusual: An Exhibition To Benefit the West
Memphis Three” is meant both as a fund-raiser for the WM3's legal-defense find, the
entity that pays the legal bills associated with the appeals for the three convicts, and as a
commermorative event to mark the 10th anniversary of their amests, in June of 1993,
Featured will be the artwork of Marilyn Manson, Raymond Peitibon, Exene Cervenka,
Robbie Conal, Shepard Fairey, Glen E. Friedman and others. Winona Ryder will host the
opening-night reception Saturday from 5 to 10 p.m., and Jello Biafra will be in house to
render one of his spoken-word rants. Also present will be Arkansas journalist Mara
Leveriut, signing copies of her eyeball-popping exposé Devil s Knot: The True Story of
the West Memphis Three (Atria/Stmon & Schuster), the bible for anyone inferested in the
crime,
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The exhibit’s being organized by the L.A.-based Web site www. #M3.org, also known as
the West Memphis Three “suppert group,” run by & handful of Angelenos who for the
past seven years have tirelessly publicized the case and helped turn it into a movement on
par with the effort to free Rubin “Hurricane” Carter in the "70s. The art show is the
brainchild of Chad Robertson, a painter and graphic designer with extensive contacts in
L.A.'s art world. His girlfriend, Kathy Bakken, one of the founding members of the
WM3 support group, introduced him fo the case.

*She broke it to me on our first date,” says Robertson, who with his spiked black hair
looks like he'd still fit right in at the Big O skate park in Orange County where he spent
his early teens. “I borrowed the Paradise Lost videos from her and watched the first one
by myself. I was kinda like, ‘Man, something’s wrong, but those guys are fucking crazy.’
Then I watched the second one, and Iwas like, *Holy shit! These goys are so fucking
innocent.”™

It’s a common reaction for those who've seen both documentaries. [n the first,
filmmalcers Joe Berlinger and Bruce Sinofsky left viewers witli the miggling fecling that
Echols, Misskelley and Baldwin may have had something to do with the crime, even
though there appeared to be nothing of substance in (he prosecution’s case, However, in
the sequel, Berlinger and Sinofsky go bare-knuckles with the proposition that the West
Memphis Three are guilty. They focus on the drug-addled, borderline-psychotic behavior
of John Mark Byers, the mysterious demise of his wife, Melissa, whose cause of death is
still “undetermined,” and the highly suspicious way he just happened to loge all of his
teeth around the same time bite-mark svidence became a crucial issue in the appeals
process, In short, it’s difficalt to come away from Paradise Lost 2 and not believe that
the West Memphis Three are the victims of a colossal miscarriage of justice.

Initially, Robertson planned to paint only the three men, but then he read an interview
with Henry Rollins, e supporter of the WM3 who last yesr relcased Rise Abave: 24 Rlack
Flag Songs To Benefit the West Memphis Three and has since been doing a worldwide
tour to support the album, which includes covers by Iggy Pop, Lemmy and Ice T.
(According to Rolling’ Web site, $10,000 has gone to the WM3's legal-dsfense fund so
far.) In the article, Rollins discussed the case and his activism, saying he’d run out of
ideas and would like to hear from anyone who had any. The proverbial light bulb went on
over Robertson’s head, and “Cruel and Unusual,” a particularly apt tifle in view of
Echols’ recent treatment, was born.

“Originally, 1 picked Raymond Petribon just based on his artwork,'" says Robertson.
“He’s so outspoken, with an extremely interesting point of view. And I felt he would be a
really great voice for what's going down — the strangeness of this matching the
strangeness of his art. Then I picked some of my heroes, like Exene — X, of course, was
my all-time favorite band. Then, as the show started picking up speed, Kathy brought in
Matt Malwiin, and Grove brought in Floria Sigismondi. o it wasn’t 4ll just my
choosing. But the original, core people were, and they were based on the punk rock
values, shall we say.”

Many artists in the show expressed a personal connection to the case in addition to a
desire to raige awereness of the larger issues involved, For Dead Kennedys founder Jallo
Biafia, the idea of people being sentenced to life in prison or death row because of their
appearance and their musical tastes struck a nerve,

*] wes an outeast from the moment 1 started school,” explains Biafra, “and it took me
many yeurs before 1 became proud of that. Tt ¢till meant T wound up accused of many

things I didn’t do both at school and at home, and it kind of stoked a fire inside of me
far as my strong opinions of the justice system go.” =
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Poster artist and billboard liberator Shepard Fairey, he of the ubiquitous Obey Giant

. images, met Robertson at Rolling' free Amoeba show back in December to promote the
Rise Above CD. Fairsy, who recalls being haragsed by Southern cops for “looking

funny,” instantly signed on, and did a blue-and-black silk-screened poster of Rollins to

benefit the WM3. Sales of the poster have so far garnered the legal-defense fund $2,000,

and Fairey's doing a two-tone silk-screen of the three young men for the show.

Punk rock Daumier Raymond Pettibon’s Remember the West Memphis Three is a
scathing, hilarious denunciation of America’s backstabbing snitch culture wherein Joe
Citizen is your worst Stalinist nightmare come true, Other than its title, the pen-and-ink
drawing does not refer directly to the case,

“It's hmman nature 1o have concerns raised by the things you're closest to,” explains
Pettibon. “1 think the fact that it had to do with rock music and that sart of thing probably
brings a lot of attention to it from artists and musicians and so forth. That’s a genuine
response, but in my case, I'd be suspicions of going in that direction because this sort of
thing happens, it’s systemic. That's kind of the problem when there’s so little attention
raised to the many vietims of the justice system,”

In November, the support group went to Arkansas to visit the WM3 in their respective
prisons. It was Robertson's first trip, the umpteenth for the other herdcore meribers of
this late-30s-to-carly-40-something Mod Squad, which inchudes writer and prop maestro
Burk Sauls, photographer Grove Pashley, Frontier Records owner Lisa Fancher, and
graphic artist Bakken. The art show was already in the planning stages, but stepping
through the locking glass into the reality of the Arkensas pen motivated Robertson.
Using images he captured with a digital camera, he created an oil-on-canvas triptych of
the young men reminiscent of Lucian Freud and David Hockney. Titled simply Jason,
Damien, Jessie, the men’s faces are studies in fear and suffering, their features made to
seom double-exposed, thus intensifying the emotions portrayed.

In comparison with the trip, organizing the show las been a whiz. “Bveryone’s been
really great in calling me back, and everyone's said yes,” Robertson says. He finally
settled on gallery newcomer sixspace at 549 W. 23rd Street, downtown, whose owners
generously donated their time and space. “They’re a really awesome young married
couple, Caryn Coleman and Sean Bonner,” says Robertson, “Glea Friedman was their
first show, which is preity cool. I love his work, and 1 really liked the people who wers
showing up there. It's not like a gallery where little rich ladies go to buy paintings, like at
Bergamot.”

The advance buzz for the show has spread to sueh places as the New York Post, Wired
magazine, MTV.com, People.com and Eonline.com. Roberison deserves cradit for what
promises to be a successful event, However, “Cruel and Unusual” is in fact just the most
recent manifestation of a pop-culture phenomenon that has its ground zero in Los
Angeles with Sauls, Pashley, Bakken and Fancher — the core of www.wm3.org. In the
midst of this Big Nowhere, there are actually a few human beings lurking about, and a
goodly number work in the entertainment biz, believe it or not.

“Bverybody has their function,” explains Fancher, who runs punk-pioneer label Frontier
Records (Adolescents, Circle Jerks, Suicidal Tendencies) from her small house in Valley
Village. “Kathy and Grove are real Web-savvy, graphic artists and all that kind of staff,
We're all really good friends now, which is really an amazing byproduct of this whole
thing. We actually go to the movies and do non-West Memphis things together. Butit's
tough, we feel so attached to the guys, it’s like it's happening to your family or
something. When you actually go to the prisons, you’re just so drawn to their plight.”

Since Fancher was already familiar with mail order, she eventually slid into the role of
heading up the merchandising department for the site. Oue of her ideas: a POW
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(“Prisoner of West Memphis”) bracelet modeled on the POW/MIA bracelets sold by
Vietnam-vet support groups in the *80s, with the names of all three men in black, their
arrest date and a blank space to fill in their eventual release date. Proceeds go to maintain
the Web site and publicize the case,

Bakken, an intelligent woman with a generous smile and charming Kentucky twang,
designs advertising for Fox Broadeasting, but creating movie posters has always been her
passion. Tt was while she was working for an ad agency with a contract to do the art for
HBO’s dmerica Undercover series that she first saw Paradise Lost. It was 1996, and she
had taken the video home as research for the key art, which she designed. In it she
recognized everything she loathed about the South, the narrow-mindedness and religious
bigotry.

She shared the tape with two friends — Sanls, whom she knew from the time she was
working for CNN in Atlanta, where he’d been a video-store clerk and an aspiring
filmmaker, and Pashley, a commercial photographer from Ogden, Utah, whom she’d met
here in L.A. They were both intrigued, though maybe Sauls morz than Pashley at first.

The group hopped on the still-nascent Internet, but found only dribs and drabs. After
HBO showed the film, they began discussing the case on different newsgroups, A
Harvard student nemed Max, Shaeffer built them a small, four-page Web site about a year
after the film came out. He graduated, and they look il over.

Since then, it's grown to a gargantuan 850 pages and includes an extensive archive of

photos, court documents, evidence, trial synopses, press accounts, interviews, the latest

news on the appeals process, updates on the health and welfare of the three inmates,

links, and even QuickTime foofage of Baldwin and Misskelley. According to Bakken,

the site averages 1,500 to 2,500 hits a day; but spiked as high as 70,000 hits a day when

Paradise Lost 2: Revelations was shown on HBO. Their annonncement-only c-mail list

has 4,000 addresses, end their active discussion list includes more than 800 peaple. =
Though there are other Wesl Memphis Three Web sites and message hoards, WM3 . org is

the grandpappy of them all. Many, such as the fiery Arkansas Web site ARWAR org, use

information and photos culled from their eyber progenitor.

One of the more amusing bits of self-promotion on the site is the popular black T-shirt
featuring mug shots of Baldwin, Echols and Misskelley and the slogan “Free the West
Memphis Three” in white. Sauls designed the shirts, which sell for $23, and they’ve
achieved a sort of cult-icon status. Dawsan s Creek characters have worn them, as have
sogially conscious celebs such as Eddie Vedder, Corey Taylor of Slipknot, Henry
Rollins, South Park co-creator Trey Parker, Metallica’s Jason Newsted, and Eddie
Spaghetti of the Supersuckers. After every sighting, a photo and a news item with the
exclamation “John Doe Wears the Shirt!” goes up.

And yet the suppaort group's influence is far more profound: The Web site also raises
mongey for the prisoners’ commissary accounts, which allows them to buy such exotic
items as bread, peanut butter, vitamins and toothpaste. They provide a direct link to their
Amazon wish lists, usually the safest way to send the WM3 books. The attorneys for the
three men keep the support group at arm’'s length for legal reasons, but the Web site has
long opened with a letter from Lorri Davis, Damien Echols® wife, asking for donations to
the WM3's legal-defense fund, an entirely separate entity, from which many of the
lawyers, investigators and others laboring on the case are paid.

“What they're doing has been instrumental in keeping this case in the public eve,” says
Misskelley's longtime lawyer Dan Stidham, the roly-paly Atticus Finch of the Paradise
Lost films. “Unfortunately, in a lot of these cases where a miscarriage of justice has
oceurred, there's no Web site, no HBO documentary. They have the tendency to get
swept under the rug, especially here in the South, where the death penally tends to be
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more prevalent,”

Indeed, there might never have been a Paradise Lost 2, or at least not one in its presetit
form, had it not been for the support group. Much of Paradise Lost 2 deals with the
efforts of the Web-site folks to affect the case. They more or less play the part of
narrators, fraveling to Arkansas to witness the appeals process, interacting with unusual
characters like John Mark Byers, and asking the questions that we the audience would
ask if we could. Their amateur sleuthing got noted profiler Brent Turvey involved, which
led to the discovery of bite marks on one of the victims. Dental impressions were taken
of all three of the convicted men, and none of those impressions matched the bite marks.

Unfortunately, Judge David Burnett, the judge in both trials, who, through a quirk in
Arkansas law, is allowed to rule on his own trial as a part of the appesls process, did not
agree that this new evidence was significant.

“Burnett decided he was an odontologist and said they weren’t bite marks, though he’d
just been told they were,” says a conlemptuous Sanls. “The court ordered dental
impressions taken from the guys in prison when they apparently figured it was worth
doing, But when the results came back and they didn’t match, he says, ‘Oh, they aren’t
bite marks.”™

Another Southerner, who hails from Tallahassee, Florida, Sauls is the smart-ass of the
group. His lofl in the Brewery complex downtown is patt fun house, part freak show,
part workspace filled with items he’s made for his other gig: freelance movie-prop
maestro. When I visit him for the article, he’s hard at work pumping out fake Nazi gold
bars for the film adaptation of the Hell Bay comic book series. On his bookcase is a litile
portrait he painted of the West Memphis Police Department’s Chief Inspector, Gary
Gitchell, the person primarily responsible for arresting the WM3, his hands dripping
blood and gore.

“My connection to it is that it’s just famaliar to me,” Sauls remarks in what’s ieft of his
Deep South drawl. “I grew up in ihe Bible Beit, and 1 remember everyone talking about
devil worshippers. | remember hearing the argument that if you don’t go to church, that
means you must worship Satan, because if yon don’t worship Jesus, then it follows
automaticslly that you must therefore worship Satan. And if you worship Satan, what's
stopping you from killing people?”

As an erstwhile son of the Soufh, T can remember the kind of moronic, Bible-thumping
totalitarianism he’s deseribing, Most denizens of Los Angeles have no idea, You never
know what’s going to come out of Sanls’ mouth next. In glasses, his head shaved like a
homeboy’s, he has this oddball sang-froid that makes him difficult to read. Bul he admits
that his *“second job” affects him,

“It’s tough sometimes, especially visiting the guys in prison, which is depressing,” he
says. “And il’s sad to think about the kids who’ve been murdered. There are one or two
people out there who’ve accused us of supporting child-killers, But part of the reason we
got so heavily involved in this thing is because on our first trip out there to Arkansas, we
miet Dan Stidham. He put a bunch of the autopsy photos in front of us. I guess he was
testing us, you know. Since we were from California, he probably thought we were ‘Save
the Whales” kind of people. He laid these horrible pictures out, and it was shocking. Not
something you see every day. But we really looked at them, and really began Lo realize
how terrible and complicated this crime really was.”

Grove Pashley recalls that moment with Stidham back in 1996 as being a real turning
point for him personally, Tall and physically fit, with dirty-blond hair and blue eyes,
Pashley deseribes himself as a “behind-the-scenes guy,” who’s not afraid to call up the
lawyers, the press or whoever needs calling, He says Sauls and Bakken *were the first to
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jump on this,” but Pashley was holding back & bit up until that point.

“It had a huge impact on us when we saw the dead children.” says Pashley, “We realized
for the first time, it wasn't just these three guys who are serving sentences, it’s these
three liitle children as well. And Dan said this to us — and it was so true back then —
the only people around wha &re going to help these guys are sitting in this room right
now. We’d discussed doing the support fund before, but that is when reality hit. It gave
us a responsibility I almost didn’t want to take on. I always feel like I didn’t choose it, it
chose me.™

Pashley’s stark, black-and-white pictures of Damien, Jessie and Jason will also be in the
show. Like Sauls, Bakken and Fancher, he’s usually wearing one of the POW bracelets.
But he took it to the next level after the second film came out, getting WM3 tattooed in
Braille on the inside of his left wrist. “For me, it's about blind justice,” he says, as if he
wants to help justice read. There's the sense that the WM3 have “marked"” him, just as
the tattooist did with needle and blue ink.

“There are times and days when I gei consumed by it,” he says. “And it seems to all
happen at once. Most of the time when I'm working on it myself and seeing the stuff
that's going on and knowing what's going on and convinced as I am that they didn’t do
this crime, I get really optimistic. But when I see how slow things go and I can see that
the money is in such desperate need — more now than during the trial —and when I talk
ta people in Arkanses who say it*s not going to heppen on the state level, T wonder,
*God, how much more do we need?” What's il going to take Lo convince these people
thet these guys are innocent and that they got a real killer oot there?™

“I just know we’re right,” Bakken says. “T'm just so convinced, so adamant that these
guys are going to get out ene of these days, and my job is to try to make their lives easy
and bearable until then — giving people access to them, so their viewpoint is always
focused cutside prison instead of in. They're not cenviots. They're not normal priscners
whose lives have become prison. They're always focused on us, on their girifriends, or
their wives. They have all of these supporters giving them all of this love. Sending them
letters, money, offering to help. I like keeping them focused that way. So they're not
making their life in prison, they’re preparing for life outside.™

“I persanally can’t imagine Damien ever being executed,” says Pashley. “That would
affect me too much. 1 would just be so bitter and amgry.”

The more I leamn about the case, about the incompetence and corruption of the officials
in Arkansas, the more | too am fearful of how it will all end. Mara Leveritt’s book
Devil’s Knot documents in heavily footnoted detail how drug tratficking through
Crittenden County — where West Memphis is located — has tainted the legal process
there. She proffers evidence that John Mark Byers was a narc for the Crittenden County
Drug Task Force, and she alleges 2 systematic pattern of preferential treatment given to
Byers in a series of sometimes-violent criminal incidents before and after the murders
took place. Byers, who reportedly lives in Tennessee somewhere near Memphis, could
nat be reached for comment, but his bizarre, antisocial behavior in both Paradise Lost
films has done nothing 1o calm the speculation surrounding him. Leveritt says the West
Memphis Police Department “bent over backwards” not to investigate him properly.

“If you look at the way the police questioned John Merk Byers, it does not conform to
the way police in any other police depariment in the country T believe would look ata
man with that record,” Leveritt tells me. “The very fact that here is a guy whose stepson
is murdered and nowhere in the police investigative file is there a mention of the fact that
he was convicted of a ‘terroristic threatening' of his ex-wife. It boggles the mind.”

While locking inte Leverilt’s cleims, [ spoke to Vietoria Hutcheson, who testified
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against Jessie Misskelley and who was instrumental in helping the West Memphis Police
Department pin this triple murder on the WM3. Now 40, and still in Arkansas,
Hutcheson expressed profound regret for her role in the investigation and Misskelley’s
trial, and she claimed she was under duress from the West Memphis PD to act as she did.
She said there were indirect threats by the WMPD at the time to implicate her in the
crime, and possibly take her child Aaron from her. As for her testimony against
Misskelley:

“Scmeone should have checked my bload alcohol content. It tock a lot for me to get up
there and say all that. 1 can’t sit here and tell you I lied, because T don’t want fo go to
prison for — whatever it is — perjuring myself without an attorney present. But
someone should’ve checked to see how many pills I'd had before [ got on the stand.
There were certain times I even threw Stidham some remarks, trying to steer it another
way. That's a part of my life T regret, very much so, Jessie was like a little brother to me,
And 1 had to male & choice between him and my zon.”

Asked specifically about the story she told, of attending some sart of witches® orgy in the
West Memphis woods with Misskelley and the others, she was intentionally vague.

“That story evolved. Can we say it like that? Instead of the story was real, the story was
anything, it evolved. “I thought thal one day T could take it all back. I don’t kniow how I
can without it ruining me.” Later, she added about the police, “Yeah, it’s just their story,
that's the only one that works. You don’t come at them with anything else. They were
running the show.”

Hutcheson says she lives in fear of Byers coming after her, and says she believes Byers
hiad something to do with the crime. Interestingly, at Jeast one of the jurors in the Echols-
Baldwin trial concurs with her suspicion of Byers, who had to testify at the trial when he
gave the HBO filmmakers a hunting knife with blood on il that they subsequently turned
over to the West Memphis PD (Tests showed that it could have been either Byers' blood
or the blood of his murdered stepson.)

“1 truly believe he was there or had something to do with it,” former juror Sharon French
told me regarding Byers’ testimony. “But he wasn’t on trial. Us jurors discussed that,
that he was there, but we couldn’t do anything about that becanse he wasn’ton trial ”

As for Echols, she explained her regret this way: “I'm sorry I voted to give him the death
penalty. I'have one son who's about their age. During the trial, everyone thought they
were guilty from the start. Now T don’t know. He maybe ought to have a new trigl. If the
DNA proves he didn't do it, Thope ke gets off, Now [ hope both or all three of ther geta
new trial, if there’s new evidence and DNA,”

Nevertheless, the police, the prosecutors and the judges involved remain hostile to tny
idea that they may have convicted the wrong men and let the real killer or killers remain
free. Prosecutor Brent Davis, who bears an eerie resemblance to Brad Dourif’s character
in Mississippi Burning, says he has “not one jota” of a doubt. His former deputy John
Fogleman, now a circuit-court judge, claimed he was still convinced, though he says,
“There are always little nagging doubts about things, things that don’t make sense, or
don’t add up.”

Some of the things that don’t add up include why in 1992 — one year before the murders
— Judge Burneit formally expunged Byers’ felony conviction of threatening his ex-wife
with an electric shocker. There's also the fact that 10 years ago, Brent Davis declined to
prosecute Byers for a scam that involved the theft of two Rolex watches from UPS, even
though he had confessed to the crime, according to Leveritt's book. And there's the
mysierious death of Byers' wife, Melissa, who never awoke from lying down to take a
nap with her husband in March of 1996.
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The apparenily “incarceration-proof™ Byers finally did 15 months 1n prison, but only
after he was nabbed for selling Xanax to undercover narcotics officers in an incident
even Arkansas police conldn’t ignore. But it goes higher than Arkansas. Leveritt’s book
discusses an incident in which Byers was amresled in Memiphis in July of 1992, nearly a
year before the murders, by Sherifls deputies on charges of conspiring to sel] cocaine
and carrying a dangerous weapon. Sometime during the night, he was taken into the
custody of the U.S. Marshals Service. The paper frail ends there.

Chief Deputy Tommy Thompson, at the U8, Marshals Service, Weslem District of
Tennesses, responded to a Freedom of Information Act request by stating, “We do have
some records in our computer of him being in our custody in 1992.” But he added, *Our
headguarters will have to advise me what can be relensed.” A few days laler, the Justice
Department formally rejected the FOIA request on grounds that releasing the information
weuld be a violation of Byers® privacy. Damien Echols may be one of the best-read
individuals T*ve ever mel. In fact, he tells me he limits himself to a book every couple of
days becanse his eyesight is getting so poor. Physically, with his pale complexion and
zosl-black hair, he locks like Jack White of the White Stripes. He'd fit right in at some
coffeehouse in Santa Monica talking about Carl Jung or Martin Heidegger, two of his
favorite authors. During our meeting, the conversation jumped zll over, from his interest
in tarot to Buffy the Vampire Slayer (“How could they cancel that show?!™) to the
significance of cerfain dreams and nightmares. He tells me that his dreams are mostly
about the West Memphis PD harassing him.

If he gets out, Echols plans to move as far away from Arkansas as he can get, definitely

to the West Coast, where many of his friends live. “Seattle sounds nice,” he tells me,

Also, his pal Eddie Vedder lives there. “1'd like to open a used-book store, but with

really good used books. But it wouldn't just be a bookstore. We'd sell oils and incense,

things like that, and give classes in yoga.” He says ke just wants to disappear after this is

all over. He doesn’t think about death, he says, or worry about his appeals process. He =
leaves dealing with the lawyers to Lorri, who is his bridge to the outside world.

t'was through Lorri that he granted this visit at the last minute, knowing that, as he told
me in a telephone interview in 2000, most people “cannct separaie me from the case.”
Berause he was seging me against the advice of counsel, Lorri had asked me not to
record our conversation or take notes. My account here, including the quotes, is taken
from memory and from notes made afterward.

Last year, Echols” lawyers petitioned the Arkansas Supreme Court o retest some of the
biologicel evidence for DNA using more sensitive lests (han were available a decade
ago. After granting them several delays, the Supreme Court finally crdered that Echols’
defense get the testing done before a deadline that will just have expired as this paper
goos to print. When I pressed Joe Margulies, Echols' top lawyer, as to why the defense
was letting this valuabile opportunity slip away, he hung up on me; saying coldly, “ITil
doesn’t meet with your satisfaction, that’s unfortunate.”

In my rental car, passing through small towns that look like they’ve been trapped in
amber since Eisenhower was president, I keep thinking of that line in the Dylan song
about Rubin Carter: “How ean the life of such s man/Be in the palm of some fool’s
hand?” That was off the 1975 Desire album, and Carter’s ordeal wasn’t over until a
federal judge ordered him released in 1985 and prosecutors declined to retry him & third
time. Echols may have a long road ahead before juslice is done, if he can stay alive long
enough to walk it.

st Memphis Three”
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Ryder to the rescue

Winena headlines celebs at art show for West Memphis Three
Arkansas Times

By Stephen Lemons

LOS ANGELES— Overlooking a crowd of thousands in dowatown Los Angles,
Winona Ryder didn’t mince words. “We believe a terrible injustive happened 10
years ago,” the doe-gyed celeb, a cordon of lights illuminating her in the darkness.
“An injustice that involved six young lives. Three are dead. Three are holed upin
prison for crimes that we and millions across America believe they did not commit.”

The audience roared it's approval, and the star of “Edward Seissorhands,” “Girl
Interrupted " and the ""Crucible” went on to condemn what she referred to a8, “in
my opinion, 2 modem-day witch-hunt.” The witch-hunt in question? The
prosecution of the West Memphis Three, convicted a decade ago of the murder of
three young boys. Ryder was in-house last Saturday at the hip L.A. gallery
“Sixspace™ to host “Cruel and Unusual: An Exhibition to Benefit the West Memphis
Three.” Qrganized by the L.A.-based West Memphis Three Support group at
www.wim3.org, the show included mostly WM3-themed art (Ryder posed bzfore
portraits nf the three men t.cmvlclcd of the slayings) donated by about 20 nationally
y for the WM3's legal defense fund.

i An estimated 4,500 Angelenos turned
@l oul to see the art, and, of course the
likes of Ms. Ryder. Ryder spoke for
about 15 minutes to a parking lot filled
with people outside the gallery, calling
for new trials for Jason Baldwin,
Damien Echols, and Tessie Misskelley,
= who were found guilty in 1993 of the
homicides of three 8-year old West

o Memphis boys: Stevie Branch, Michael
TH Moaore, and Christopher Byers.
Authorities characterized the killings as ritualistic and cult-inspired. Misskelley and
Baldwin are currently serving life sentences. Damien Echols is on Death Row. All
three men are appealing their convictions.
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“All we ask is thet a proper, real investigation be done to find our who killed these
young chuldren,” Ryder said. She encouraged the crowd to donate money so that
DINA testing could be done on physical evidence taken from the crime scene. She
expressed hope that such testing—not available in 1993—might exonerate Baldwin,
Misskelley and Echols. Attendees apparently heeded Ryder's call. According to
gallery ec-owner Caryn Coleman, more than $20,000 was raised through donations
and sales of art and other merchandise, such as black T-shirts bearing the mug-shots
of the prisoners and the rallying cry “Free the West Memphis.” And P.O:W.
(Prisoner of West Memphis) bracelets with the names of the convicts, their arrest
date, and a blank space for what supporters hope will be their release date.

Coleman, along with her husband, Sean Bonner, donated their space for the exhibit,
which will be up until September 20, and can be viewed at www.sixspace.com.

Other celebrities present inclnded Doug Hutliison (The Green Mile) and formar
Dead Kennedey lead singer Jello Biafra, who gave a spoken-word performance
denouncing the death penalty. Ryder was accompanicd by boyfriend and rocker
Page Hamilton, of the band Helmut. And there were rumors —still uticonfirmed—af
an appearance by “Seabiscuit Star Tobey Maguire.

Two of the most admived individuals in attendance hailed not from Hollywood, but
the Natural State; Lawyer Dan Stidham, who represented Jessie Misskelley before
Judge Davd Bumett in 1993 and who still represents the 28 year old; and Arkansas
Times contributing Editor Mara Leveritt, authar of Devil's Knot: The True story of
the West Memphis Three. Both spoke after being introduced by Ryder.

Stidham thanked Angelenos for coming,
telling them that the tide of public opinion was
shifting in Arkansas to a belief that the WM3

more emphatic, stating that both the Arkansas
Gavermnor and Attorney General are constantly =3
barraged with mail about the WM3. The “ice 3
is eracking,” said Leveritt, Recently, the rights §
to Leveritt's book have been acquired by the
US4 Netwark, which is producing a two-hour
drama based on it.

The event was covered by national and
international media, inchuding the BRC, USA
Today. People Magazine, Rolling Stone, Celebyity Justice and the Associated Press,
A lengthy story in the L4, Weekly, Los Angeles' alt-news publication, previewed
thie art show and featured news reporting about the case, such as quoles from one
witness in the Misskelley trial who alleges her testimony was coerced by the West
Memphis PD, and a juror in the Echols-Baldwin trial who expressed regret for
sending Echols to death row. The article, by this reporter, can be read here:
httpiiwww laweekly.com/ink/ 03/42/features-lemons.php.

In the piece, the Federal Marshals Service in Memphis confirmed that John Mark
o § Byers, stepfather of one

j of the slain children, had

been in their custody in

B 1992, nine months prior

to the murders, after

M being arrested by
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Memphis on drug and weapons charges. Byers remains a source of speculation in
part because of his seemingly odd behavior in the IIBO documentaries Paradise Lost
and Paradise Lost 2: Revelations. Leveritt’s book states Byers was drug informant
for the Crittenden County Drug Task Force at the time of the murders, and
documents a pattern of preferential treatment provided Byers by Arkansas
officialdom.

Many at the Art Show expressed the belief that the truth of what happened 10 years
ago would one day be revealed. Until then, they would agitate for justice on behalf
of the WM3, “I don't congider this a cause,” said Ryder, who is still on probation for
her November 2002 grand thefl conviction. “You don’t have to be an activist to be
concerned about basic human rights. This is a very sad and fragic reality.
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PROFILE:

A Parugould Attarney and a Second
Judicial District Judge still belleves in
the innocence of his Client after 10
years

By MIRANDA REMAKLUS
Paragould Daily Press

Daniel Stidham of Paragould represented
Jessic Misskelley Jr, during the West
Memphis murder trial in which .

Misskelley, Damien Echols and Jason Baldwin were convicted of the brutal deaths
of eight-year-olds Steve Branch, Christopher Byers and Michael Moare that
oceurred May 5, 1993 in the Robin Hood Hills area of West Memphis,

Echols wos sentenced to death by lethal injection, Baldwin wag sentenced to life in
prison plus forty years with no possibility of parole and Misskelley received life in
prison with no parole.

Stidham strongly believes in Misskelley’s innocence and states, “He did not do what
the prosecutors and the state alleged he has done. I made a promise to him that [
would continue fighting and try to correct this injustice.”I would not defend
someone for 10 years if I did not fully believe he didn’t kill those three boys.”

Misskelley®s defense team recently filed a motion to have the court retest some
foreasic evidence, Stidham said that when the case was tried in 1993 and 1994,
DNA evidence was just beginning and now technelogy has changed dramatically.

He also stated that the Arkansas legislature passed a DNA statute that allows
prisoners the right to have their DNA retested. “A combination of these two things
makes it possible for us to ask for this (retest) and we are hopeful that some of the
items of evidence may yield clues to who the real killer is.”

Stidham said that negotiations are ongoing with respect to the prosecutor and the
attorney general’s effice about what items may be retested, whal laboratories will
conduct the tests and who has access to the results. *There are three defendants and
three separate defense teams. We are all trying 10 work together to see that this gets
done. I am hopeful that this will prove thal not only our clients did not have
anything to do with this horrible crime, but perhaps lead us to the real killer.”

Stidham not only believes in Misskelley’s innocence but he believes Echols and
Baldwin are innocent as well. “In the quantum of the case, there is actually less
evidence against Tchols and Baldwin than (here is my client. T really do not believe
that either of the three had anything 1o do with the case.” Stidham cited the beliel
around the time of the case that Christopher’s step-father, John Mark Byers, may
have had something to do with the murders. “There are certainly a lot of innuendoes
to that affect, but T.am not aware of any hard evidence to this. I would submit that
there is just as much evidence against Byers as there are the three in prison.”With
respect (o Byers, Stidham went on to say that, “T am not going to stand up and say
that some person did something without proof”

Stidham personally believes that a serial liller may have had something to do with

0059520
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the murders. “This is my personal belief after 10 years of research, investigation and
consultation with criminal profilers and others involved in the case.™ Stidham said

that there were several things he found fundamentally unfair with the Misskelley ,
case. Primarily that Misskelley was given a polygraph exam by the police B
immediately prior to his confession. A polygraph test that he actually passed, but the

police told him he failed. The court refused to Iet (the defense team) tell the jury that

he had passed his polygraph exam.” Stidham continued that Misskelley confessed

because he believed the officers when fthey told him that he had failed the polygraph

test. “I always felt that it was fundamentally unfair that the police could use this

machine, which is supposed to tell you whether or not you are lying, as a stick to

beat over my client, who is mentally-retarded, to get him to admil to something he

did not do.” Stidham said that he had an expert witness that specialized in false

confessions from the University of California at Berkeley. “He was never allowed to
exprass his opinion to the jury.”

Stidham also cited the massive media atlention that this case received in 1993 to
Misskelley, Baldwin and Echols not receiving a fair tral. I feel that the killer is sill
out there. There were several other child murders ul that time and all of the evidence
we have seems (o sugges! thal we may be dealing with a serial killer.™ Stidham
attributed the amount of media attention that the West Memphis case received, in
comparison to the other cases, to the fact that three children were killed. “Anytime
three small children ave killed at the same time - that has a tendency to generate a lot
of publicity.” Stidham said that triple homicides with children are very rare.

Stidham said that the case generated & lot of atteniion due to ‘satanic panie’ as well.
“The West Memphis Police Department, through the assistance of olher police
departments - including the New York City Police Department, became convinced
through some bad science and same bad punches that this was a satanic ritualistic
homicide.”Stidham said that at this time in history, several celebrities had stepped
forward and were telling of repressed memories they were encountering in which
they had been abused. He continued that a kind of witeh-hunt mentality was
forming. “Essentially, because of this ‘satanic panic’ and the fact that we were
dealing with three eight-year-old children - the case had a tendency to become really
sensationgl.™

Stidham said that, at that time, he could not remember a single event in Arkensas,
other than Bill Clintan being elected President, where the state gamered as much
media attention. “We literally had CNI and the major networks camped in West
Memphis delivering daily news briefs - much like what you have seen receatly with
the Maryland sniper case and the Peterson case in California.” Stidham discussad
that the FBI, after researching the concept of salanic ntualistic hamicide, came to
the conclusion that there had never been such a thing. Stidham stated, “There has
never been a single documented case of satanic otualistic homicide discovered on
this planet.” He said that, “This Is different from somiebody in California, strangling
a bunch of people and saying that the devil made them de i, or with the Son-of-Sam
case in New York City where David Berkowilz said that his neighbors’ dog was
telling him that the devil was telling him to kill those people.” Stidham went on to
say, “There¢ are certain situations where people will claim that the devil made them
do things.” He reiterated that there has not been a satanic cult that would kidnap
children and sacrifice or multilate them in the name of their religion.

‘Stidham rouched back on the Leei Peterson case, in which recently Scott Peterson's
defense team hes suggested Laci’s death was a type of salanic ritualistic homicide.
“Had the lawyer done his homewark, and researched this carefully, he would know
that there has never been such a thing documented.” Stidham said that he is still
amazed with how much attention the case stifl receives. He said that he still receives
mail, e-rnail, and calls from around the world from people wondering about the case

hitp://www.stidhamlawfirm.com/innocence html 3/16/2009

ADD 4413



Dan Stidbam, Attorney At Law: Articles Page 3 of 3

and how they can donate funds to help. “Common everyday folks and then major
celebritics will donate funds.” He emphasized what an interesting ten years he has
had with gefting to travel the world just for this case. “I have gotten to appear on
television to talk about the case and speak at seminars on the facts of this case.”

Stidham’s hope and prayer is that some day, “Tustice will be served and the people
‘who were wrongly convicted will be set free and that the person or persons who are
responzible for killing these children, are brought to justice.” Stidham stressed that
this hias been his prayer for ten years, “One of the three convicted (Daniien Echols)
is on death row. My fear is that we might not find the answers we need in time 1o
save his life.” Appeals are still lelt with Echols® case; therefore an execution date
has not been set. “Eventuelly the appeals process will run its course. We are really
hopeful that an appeals judge will give us another opportunity (o present this case.”
The defense attorney said that a jury is only as good as the evidence it is presented
with, “That jury (in 1994) did not get all of its information, nor did (the defense
leam) have access to certain information.”

Stidham said that in 1997, it was discovered that a human bite marlk was on (he face
of one of the victims. “Dental impressions were made on all of the three convicted
teens,” Stidham said. “None of the impressions match the bite on the victims face,”
He said that this information was not known until four years after the trial and
stressed that this was very important information.” New evidence of alibi
information has become available which (the defense team) did not have access to
before,” Stidham said. “People were so afraid to come forward and talk to the police
for fear of being dragged into the panic and with that satanic angle, information 10
years ago that we assumed true, we discovered is not true.” Stidham concluded: ™We
are hopeful thal we can get another opportunity. I think if we had that epportunity,
the results would be dramatically different,
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Attorney: WM3 Deserve New Trial

It was in a section of trees i
West Memphis where police say they found the
bodles of three B-year-old boys back In 1993,
Investigaters found the boys, hog-tied and beatan
to death in a drainage ditch. One of the boy's
genltals had been mutilated.

Police eventually decided Damien Echols, Jessie
Missksliey and Jason Baldwin were to hlame. In
court, they were convicted of the murders,

Thelr attorney Daniel Stidham says, “This Is a horrible case of injustica.”

Thursday night in Canway, Stidham said West Memphis police built a8 case around the
false confession of Misskelly.

Stidham cantends Miszially had the 1.Q. of a S-year-old 2nd was told by palics what to
say though hours af interrogations. "It's nat really difficult to get someone mentally
handicapped to canfess to secmething they didn't do,” says Stidham.

Pallce called the murders a satanic ritualistic homiclde, Stidham says Misskelly, whao was
labeled @ Satan worshiper, didn’t even know who Satan was, Stidham Is calling for a new
trial foi his clishts,

He says, "We now know there's no such thing as a satanfc ritualistic homicide, we now
know that false confessions do happen. Back in 1993, no one undearstood that."

Mara Leveritt Is a former reporter and wrote 2 bonk, "Devil's Knot" aboilt the casa, Basad
on what she's seen, she agrees the three are innocent.

She says, "At the very least, the probiems with these trials have got to be honestly
looked at and honestly addressad, And 1 think it's inpurtant for the people of Arkansas to
demand that.”

tidhaim savs in the past 13 years, more evidence has surfaced and witnesses have
retractad their statements. He believed his ciiants will be free if jurors can hear the case
agaln,

Stidham says he also belisves West Memphis police mishandled the crime scane and
never found any forensic evidence. He also belleves a serial killer murdered the boys.

Damien Echals Is on death row swalting execution, Jessle Misskelley and Jason Baldwin
are both serving life sentances.

Jerod Clark, Reporte -

Createc: 4/6/2006 10:53:46 PM
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Attorney investigating famous murder case to
speak at FHS

Fort Hays, Kansas
Friday November 18, 2005

By: Amber Saueressig

A murder case is about to be discussed on campus, From 3 to 8 pm. on Thursday in
Rarick Hall, room 201, and from 1 to 6 p.m. on Friday in the Memorial Union
Ballroom, nothing but justice studies, investigation clues, depression, anger, sexual
maolestation and death will be on the tip of everyone’s tongue. The past shall come
forth again.

In 1993 an incident occurred in West Memphis, Ark. Three boys each eight years
old, were found in a ditch full of mud alongside Interstates 40 and 55. Murder was
not the only incident recognized. One had been sexually mutilated and each was
obviously brutally handled until their death.

Far less than a month, police looked for a killer and a reason. Soon, 3 teensger came
forward, claiming that he and two others had completed the killing in relation to a
satanic cult.

Dan Stidham was the
attorney of the teenager who
came forward, Jessie [
Miskelley. He will speak
about the video being
shown; hie will be
emphasizing the twists and
turns of the murder case,

Stidhant 15 said 1o have
consulted with many of the
world's leading lorensic
experts throughout his 10
years of coverage of the
West Memphis Three
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murder case.

Stidham is said to have consulted with many of the world’s leading forensic experts
throughout his 10 years of coverage of the West Memphis Three murder case.

Overell, the video will be discussing a multitude of issues involved in the case,
showing the viewers what pros and cons took place.

It will contain information about the case and the processes that took place
throughout it. Some that will be included are false confessions, police interrogation
techniques, criminal profiling, satanic panic and other legal issues.

<le-[if lvml}--><!—[endif]-->The documentary that will be shown is called Paradise
Lost2: Revelations. It, and similar shows/interviews, have been viewed on HBO (in
1996 and 2000), NBC Nightly News, MSNBC and Coutt TV's Prime Time Justice.
Stidham’s biography of the case was a cover story in 1996 in Arkansas Times
magazine,

Both events are open to all students, faculty, conimunity, people involved in any
form of law enforcement and others. The question to be answered is, “Can an
innocen! person be convicted?” Walking out with an opinion, feelings about the
incident end a better understanding for law, justice, criminal issues and more is
hoped to be inevitable. The documentary was shown last night, with the discussion

following on Friday.
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University of Arkansas
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EQUAL JUSTICE WORKS SYMPOSIUM TO
FOCUSON WRONGFUL CONVICTIONS

FAYETTEVILLE, Ark. — Equal Justice Works, a legal organization at
the University of Arkansas Schoal of Law, will present "Innocence Lost:
A Symposium on Wrongful Convictions™ at 12:30 p.m.. Tuesday March 9,
in the school's courtroom.

Court TV host and commentator James Curtis, Philadelphia attorney 1,
Gordon Cooney and Paregould, Ark., attorney Dan Stidham, a 1987
alumnus of the School of Law, will serve as panelists for the event, which
will delve into a variety of cases involving wrengful convictions.

Cocney and another partner were able to get a man off of death row and
out of prisen in 2003 because of DNA testing after 15 vears of
incarceretion from a 1983 conviction. Cooney is an adjunct lecturer in law
at Villanova University Law School and is in litigation practice al Morgan
Lewis in Philadelphia.

Stidham wes elected to the position of District Court Judgs of Greene
County in 2000, He was sppointed to represent a member of the "West
Memphis Three" defendanis who were accused of killing three 8-vear-old
boys in 1993 in what police maintain was a satanic ritual. Stidham is the
only original attorney still working the case; and for the last 10 years has
been actively investigating the murder case pro bono as it moves through
the appeals stage.

Equal Justice Works is a student-run organization whose purpose is to
promote knowledge and inferest in public interest law, to encourage
students to participate in public interest internships, to broaden the scope
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of their legal education, to foster outside educational experiences fhrough
such internships and judicial clerkships and to aid in a financial manner
those students who might not ordinarily be able to afford voluntary and
lower paid outside employment opportunities in the legal community,
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Satanic Killers hope to Prove
Innocence

By Rob Winder

Campaigners across the US and around the world have
been meeting fo publicize the case of three men they
believe have heen wrongly cnvicted of a hamific nple
murder, <I--[if lvml]-—><1-[endif]-->More than 50 conterts, fitm sereenings and mectings
were held al the weekend to show support for Damien Echols, Jason Baldwin and Jessie Misskelley -
convicted in 1994 of the killing of three Arkansas children. Events were held as far apart 55 Moscow
and McMurdo research base, in Antarctica. The campaign has drawn high-orofile support from
actress Winona Ryder and rock band Metallica

Ritual killings

On 6 May 1993, the bodies of three eight-year-old boys were found, e of them horribly mutilated,
m waoods just outside West Memphis, Arkansas. The police quickly identified and arrested three
prime suspeets - Echols, Baldwin and Misskelley - all teenagers at the time

At the trial of Echols and Baldwin, the proseaution alleged the young men were mestibers of a satzanic
cult znd that the killings were ritualistic. The jury agread - Baldwin receivad a life sentence without
purole whilst Echols; as the alleged Jeader of the group, was sentenced w death by lethal injecton,

Migskelley had already received life plus 40 years &t an eaclier trial.

But soon serious doubts were rised ubout the convictions gnd 12 vedrs on, cempaigners are
intensifying their offorts to prove the innocence of the "West Memphis Three "

<l—[if lvml]—><!--[endif]-->"Ridiculons'

The men's lawyers believe that the police were under great
pressure from the Tocal community to find and charge the
perperrators of & tesrible orime quickly, “A Bomible mistake
was made," says Jessie Misskelley's lawyer Dan Stidham. He
argues that there was a widespread belief amongst
inlernational law enforcement zgencies in the early 1990s that |
the satanic ritunl abuse of children was far more commonplace
than was acmally the case.

There were many high-profile cases during the 19803 and IQQD;I, including the McMartin pre-school
case in California and the Orkney abuse scandal in the UK, in which stanic ritual abuse was alleged
but later disproved.

"All the major prosecution witnesses have alsp since recanted their evidense and the case sesms even
more ridicaious after 12 vears,” Mr Stidham said.

Witcheraft

Jessie Misskelley, 17-yeats-old at the time, was convicled partly on e strength of his confession to
police. He has a substantial leamina dizahility and was questioned for twelve honrs withou the
presenee of g lawyer or gther adult. Only 20 minutes of this questioning wiere recorded and played to
the court - Misskelly later claimed his confession was false and was made under intense palice
pressure. Mo murder weapons or conclusive forensic evidence linking the three 1w the crimie scene
were produced in court - and neither was g motive - apart from their alleged satanic beliefs.
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Damien Echols was Interested in the Wicca religion - a pagan belief system that incorporates
witchcraft. But the prosecution suggested that hig wezring of black clathes, lstening to heavy mefal
music and reading Stephen King horror banks were also evidence of his guilt. And it emerged during
cross-examination that the police's expert on witchersft had bought his PED from a mail arder
company and not talen any classes to gain it. On top of this, the police also sdmitted to losing
evidence that could have pointed towards alternative suspets,

A television documentary ahout the original wial, Paradise Lost, sparked interest in the case seioss
the US and a campelgning group was set up by those sympathetic lo the three,

Burk Sauls has been involved in the campaign since 1996. He believes the progesution successfully
played an the jury's fear of satanic ritual abuse instead of cancentrating on the evidencs, "The
foreasic seience and the evidence were ignared and superstition and allegations of devil worshipping
cults took precedence over the facts.* "These guys were also dirt poor - from the trailer parks of
Arkansas - and they didn't have the money to launch 2 proper defence.”

TFedersl appeal

Despite the lack of evidence agginst them the West Memphis Three have los: all their sppeals to date.
The Arkansas Supreme Court found st Echols’ and Baldwin's original appeal thal there was
“substantial evidence of their guilt" and that Echols "admitted on cross-examination that he hed
dalved deeply into the oceull and was Familiar with its practice.” That judeement pointed to witnesses
who said they saw Echuls near the crime scene and others who olaim to have overheard him
admitting to the murders.

The three men and their supporters now hope that DNA evidence taken from aver 1,000 items at die
crime scene will finally exonerate them. Bchols and Baldwin have also Jaunched a new appeal to the
federal courts, although for Echiols, time is ronding out.

“I'm gunrdedly optimistic about the three's charoes but we wre running out of time a5d Wwe need to get
som justics,” said Mr Stidhurm. "We nieed to got this train off the wacks if we ure going to save Mr
Echols."

The BBC News website contacted both the Arkansas stata prosecutor in the case, Brent Davis, and
the West Memphis Police Department - hoth declined to comment.
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Life After Death

In 1994, the West Memphis Three were
convicted of child murder. But troubling
questions and a series of films have led many to
doubt their guilt.

BY ANNETTE STARK | SEPTEMBER 21, 2006

has grown incredibly celd in 13 years. Even
tha morbidly curious college students finally
stopped haunting the drainage ditch behind
the Blue Beacon Truck Wash il West Memphis,
Arkansas, where 8-year-olds Christopher
Byers, James Michael Moore, and Steven

Branch were found killed and mutilated on May E =

5, 1993, "We tore that old plaoa down," says a Blue Eeacon workel He refuses
to discuss the murders and won't give me his name. "It's over with, and I'm not
allowed to talk about it. All these years later, I'm still trying to figure out if those
three kids that got killed were the same kids we told not to play here that day
because of the trucks."

When I ask him If he believes they got the guys who did it, he hangs up.

The town has moved on. But questions about the murders and subsequent
convictions of three West Memphis teenagers linger, many of them raised by two
HBO documentaries, Paradise Lost: The Child Murders at Robin Haod Hiils and
Paradise Lost 2: Revelations.

Paradise Lost documentarlans Joe Berlinger and Bruce Sinofsky (who both also
directed Metallica: Some Kind of Monster) first chronicled the 1994 Arkansas
trials and subsequent convictions of three West Memphis teenagers — Daimien
Echols, Jason Baldwin, and Jessie Misskelley -- now known as the West Memphis
Three. (Baldwin and Misskelley got life. Echols got the death penalty.)

The follow-up, Revelations, revisits West Memphis for Echols' ill-fated state
appeals and also highllghts the earliest efforts of a now-worldwide network of
WM3 supporters, led in the begirning by three Los Angeles advocates from the
film industry: Kathy Bakken, Burk Sauls, and Grove Pashley.

And Interest [ the case s still growing. Sinofsky and Berlinger's Paradise Lost 3
Is slated for release sometirrie this year, and Dirmension Fllms plans te release a
film In 2007, which wili be based on the book Devil's Knot: The True Story of the
West Memphis Three by Arkansas-based investigative journalist Mara Leveritt.

Paradise Lost turned the West Memphis Three into icons. Suppoerters say it's
impossible to watch the documentary and miss the awful sense of American
justice gane wrong, that the only crime the West Memphis Three ever committed
was sticking out as black-clad outsiders In 1993 in a small Southern town.

"What struck me was that 1 kept thinking T was watching a movie with character
actors,” recalls former Black Flag singer Henry Rollins. "The things the
prosecution was saying, their witnesses, it was all so hopelessly stupid and sad.
Justice got a black eye in those trials.”
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Johnny Depp, Eddie Vedder, Jello Biafra, Winona Ryder, Jack Black, Steve Earle,
Trey Parker, and Metalllca -- to name a few -- whose fund-raising efforts include
concerts, art benefits, and compllation CDs. In 2002, Rollins released Rise
Above, a CD of 24 Black Flag songs performed by various artists including Tom
Araya (Slayer), Lemmy (Mottrhead), Nick Oliveri (Queens of the Stone Age),
Corey Taylor (Slipknot), and Ice-T, with all proceeds going to the West Memphis
Three defense. The support Web site wm3.org, which Is run out of Los Angeles,
has received more than 3,485,769 visitars as of this writing.

Today, West Memphis advertises itself as "a hometown feeling with big-city
attractions," a description you can read on the town's chamber of commerce
Web site or just glean by counting churches and ministries that line the
residential streets, But West Mempbhis is also a known drug hub, where cops
regularly seize illegal guns, pounds of marijuana, and kilos of cocaine at the
West Memphis cargo inspection station, described by the National Drug
Intelligence Ceriter as one of the two busiest In the nation,

"I would characterize West Memphis as a place where a lot of folks travel
through,® says spokesperson Steve Frazier of the FBI in Little Rock. “It's a
crossroads, a highly traveled city, and sometimes that brings the ciiminals who
travel 1-40."

Yet, when the bludgeoned hodies of three small children ware found in a
drainage ditch behind the Blue Beacon Truck Wash, local police convinced the
public that three impoverished local teens were good for the killlng, This was
accomplished with a stunning lack of evidence, the West Memphis Three
advocates say. Morsover, it was accomplished within one day.

The sign of the cross

Christopher Byers, James Moore, and Staven Branch first went missing on the
avening of May 5, 1993, According to John Mark Byers, the boy's stepfather,
Christopher had misbehaved at Weaver Elementary School and was sent home.
"I spanked him three times with my belt with his pants up," Byers recalls, And
then he told the child not to leave the house. When Byers returned home at 6
p.m., Christopher was not there. Byers first told @ cop that Christopher was
missing at 6:30 that night and then veas the first parent to report to the Wast
Memphis paolice at around 8 p.m.

The children’s botlies were discovered in the ditch an the afternoon on May 6th.
All three were naked and had recelved multiple head, limb, and torss injurles;
they were hog-tied with sheelaces binding their wrists to their anklas, Stever:
Branch had bite marks on his face. It was determined that both James Moare
and Steven Branch had drowned and suggested that Christopher Byers had
drowned as well. Of the three, Christopher Byers had sustained the most vialent
Injurfes, Including what appeared to be a sexual assault. He had a skull fracture
at the base of his neck, stab wounds on his genitals; his penis was skinned and
the killer had removed the child's testes and scrotum.

One day later, the West Memphis Police Department had a motive -- ritual child
sacrifice, a profile of the killers, who they dacided were probably members of a
satanic cult -- and three suspects: local heavy-metal fans Damien Echols (18),
Jason Baldwin (16), and lessie Misskelley (17). At noon on the following day,
they visited the Broadway Traller Park residence of Echals and began
questioning him.

Jessie Misskelley has an IQ of 72, an Indicator of mild mental retardation. O
June 3rd, West Memphis police Investigators questioned Misskelley abeut his
role In the helnous crimes. The interrogation lasted 12 hours, Misskelley was
never provided legal counsel or ailowed to call his family. Only about the last
hour of this was recorded, during which Misskelley confessed, Implicating
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himself, Echols, and Baldwin in the murders.

The Misskelley statement was riddled with errors. He repeatedly got the timeline
wrong, First he sald the murders had occurred at S a.m., which would have
bien impossible as the children were all accountad for at school. Then he
changed it to noon -- also Impossible.

Misskelley recanted his statement almost immediately, and his public defender,
Dan Stidham, sald that the only reason his client confessed was because he
thought he could get the $50,000 reward. But within a day, the three teenagers
were formally charged with murder.

Misskelley was tried and convicted in February 1994, but since he refused to
testlfy agalnst his friends, his statement was ruled inadmissible In the
Baldwin/Echols trial. That commenced within the month, with Berlinger,
Sinofsky, and the HBO cameras following every step of the way, "We thought
we were going there to make a real-life River's Edge and that these kids were
quilty,” recalls Sinofsky. "We wanted to look inta why they would commit such a
heinous crime. When we reallzed they were innocent we went back to HBO and
let them know it had gone in a different direction. We sald we were kind of
thinking the stepfather John Mark Byers did it. He was a fighting kind of guy,
and one time he even sald to us, "Just remember, boys, it all started here.™

In March 1994, Echols and Baldwin were convicted of triple homicide. Echols
was sentenced to death by |ethal Injection and Is on death row at the Arkansas
state penitentiary in Grady, where Misskelley Is serving life plus 40 and Baldwin
life without parole.

There was no weapeon at the scene and no blaod, ather than what had collected

when police removed the bodies frem the water and placed them on the ground,

leading to speculation that the murders were committed someplace else and the

bodles dragged to the ditch. The state's evidence that Echols was 2 Satanist —
amounted to an expert witness in the occult who had a mail-order degree and
pentagrams Echols had scribbled in jail. The murder weapon was a clean knife

that was found In-a lake near Echols' hame, which resembled the knife that was

possibly used at the crime.

Echols' current attorney, noted San Francisco defense lawyer Dennis Riordan,
was retained in 2004, He says: "The thing that led me to take this case was the
startling sense that, in a death penalty case, there just wasn't any cred/ble
evidence that connected him to the ctime. You can read the Arkansas State
Court apinion and they list everything that was offered against them, and it's
just terrifying that anyone could have been sentenced to death en any one of
those six factors. A knife that was serrated? You could go into any hame in
Arkansas and find a serrated knife."

According to FBI's Frazier, who checked the old files, there was a request for an
FBI profile on a probable killer — at first they ware looking for a "Ramba” type —
but it was not completed, "The West Memphis Palice Department request for a
profile was discontinued based on the fact that arrests had been made," he
5ays.

The devil wears Prada

Damien Echols wasn't every teenagsr In America In 1993, but you could pratty

much recognize the type, He dressed in black, wore skull earrings, and thought

Guns N' Roses singer Axl Rose was God. Some say he dabbled In the occult. And

he was poor -- there wasn't always enough to eat. He lived in a shabby trailer

park with a mom he loved and a stepfather he was ambivalent about. So he

hung out with his friends, listening to heavy metal and reading Stephen King =
and Anne Rice. Somatimes they'd just sit by the lake all day and throw rocks at
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the water,

Echols was strange, but he didn't have a history of Vialence; there was onas
brush with the law when he was 15, and he ran away with his glrifriend after
her father discovered them having sex. He was then sent for treatment for a
rnon-specific "psychotic disorder” at Charter Hospital. Echols was prescribed the
usual antidepressants available st that time. By the time he was released, the
canclusion by his doctors was that he was no longer depressed,

In his muck-gray and bulletproof glass visitors' cell on death row, Echols (now
30) says, "If I had to do it all over again, T would not have stood out.”

Death row Inmates are allowed a two-hour ne-contact visit with the media. So
Echols speaks through a vent in the wall. When wife Lorri Davis comes on
Fridays, she Is allowed one extra hour, and she gets to sit in the fishbowl with
him.

He's pale and anemic -- he lives on a diet of Froot Loops and granala bars
providad by Davis, In his priscn whites he blends into the walls, except for his
eyes, which are big brown sockets. He explains that he has arthritic hips from
spending 13 years In a nine-by-nine-foot concrete cell, getting fed through a slit
In the door. There have been an estimated 30 executions since he got here —
many of the other inmates have become so désensitized to the process they
don't aven look up from the television.

Aftorneys have come and gone in 12 years -- and there have been three falled
appeals. Even though several jurors now admit to considering the inadmissible
Misskelley statement, the appeals court ruled that it came tao late, stating:
"Echols' claim of juror misconduct has been brought over 3 decade after his
conviction. Clearly, this is a matter which could have been brought In a motion
for new trial Immediately after the verdict and conviction, but the argument is
now untimely,"

Echaols shakes his head: "Basically they are saying, 'You didn't file It en time so
we're going to kil you on a technicality.”

There |5 he reasen to expect a different Damien Echois from the ane seen in
Paradise Lost; after zll, he went straight from that documentary to death row.
Many of his supporters cite his intelligence and his outspokenness and that this
is what they liked about him from day one. "I'll tell you anything," he says.

During his trial, his dismissive attituds and contemptuousness hurt him on the
stand. When asked to explain the difference between Wicca and Satanism (so as
to exanerate himself from charges that he worshipped the devil), his
exasperated voice and faclal demeanor Indjeated to the jury that this just wasn't
worth his time.

"1 was in shock at my trial," he explains. "When you're innocent, you keep
thinking surely semebody's gonna realize something's wrong and say, This has
gone on long enough.™

In the late 1980s, Echols became a Buddhist, inspired by the teachings of
another Arkansas death row inmate, Jusan Frankie Parker, who was executed In
1998. He meditates — sometimes as much as five hours a day -- wrote his
autobiography, Almost Home, Volurne 1, and has had his poetry publishad In
Porcupine, a literary arts magazine. He estimates he's read 1,000 books.

"A huge deal for me is net even thinking about this place,” he says. "I read from
the time I get up In the morning til the time I go to bad. My cell is nine-by-nine.
There's nowhere to look away.”
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"Damien has done an amazing job of adapting to his envircnment and finding a
way to deal with it," Rollins observes. "He's really impressive. If he could find a
way to get it across, he could be a great teacher.”

So he reads catalogues and dreams about getting out -- about wearing Prada
ties and a nice Brooks Brothers suit, working in a bookstors, raising children,
and voting In 3 presidential election. He dreams about the political impact he
could have on this system one day.

"I was taught -- and 1 believed -- that our system worked; an innocent man
couldn't be convicted in America. I thought any mement now, I'm going home,"
says Echols.

The family that stood by Echols during the trial has scattered. His mother calls
maybe once a year; his dad remarried about six years ago and has a new
famlly. His son's mother, Domini, was around for two years after his
incarceration and then married scmeone else. "People don't stick around when
you're on death row," Echols says. "In the beginning everyone rallles araund
you, but you can't expect them to put thair lives on held just because yours Is."

Waiting for the DNA

Mostly now it's just about his wife. Pretty and wholesome -- with long brown
hair, bangs, and a bike rack on her car -- Lorri Davis' sweet voice and demeanor
suggest she hasn't had a tough day in her life. Origlnally from Morgantown,
West Virginia, Davis was living in New York and working as a landscape
architect when she attended a screening in 1996 of Paradise Lost. It hit her
about halfway through the film: "I was so horribly upset by It, and the next
morning I woke up and thought, Oh my God, they didn't do It 1 never saw a
movle and felt compelled to do something.”

She began writing Echols within a few days. One year later, she quit the New
York job -~ "Rue the day,” she says -- and moved to Little Rock, where she gets
to spend three hours every Friday visiting her husband in prison. She brings him
the granola bars, strokes the fund-raising machine, shuttles supporters back
and forth from the airport, packs Echols' 26 boxes of books, types his
manuscripts, or sends a book he picked out to a stranger who took the time to
write.

One could easily conclude that Davis is crazy. Evan Stidham recalls thinking as
much when he |learned that Davis had married Echols, "Naturally, I raade that
assumption,” he says. "But she's just a decent human being. And once you
meet her, you realize she's very Intelligent and sane. I admire and respect her.”

Decent, sape, and tenacious: Last year, right before she hired Dennis Riardan,
she got the cell phone numbers of several noted defense attorneys. She called
and begged them until they finally asked her to stop.

"When I first moved here, I would go to court hearings and sit way in the back,"
she says. "1 didn't want anyone to know who I was. When we got matried, 1
thought, I'm married to this persan and I've got this role.”

"In the beginning, I was not conviriced," Davis' mom, Lynn, remembers. "1 sald,
'Should he get out, I wonder If he rolls over In bed and says, "Lorr, Tdid it, I
beat the system.” But we met with Damien about four times, and the first time
I asked him, I said, 'Damien, did you do it?' And he said, 'T did not.' And I felt it.
I just knew that he couldn't do that to those little boys, I know that every little
town has Its problems, and they pinpointed Damien and his blddies because he
was a thorn in their side."

With nearly every state appeal exhausted, Echols hopes to be headed for federal
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court, but Misskelley and Baldwin still have pending state appeals. All three are
waiting for the results of DNA testing. (Baldwin and Misskelley declined through
thelr attorneys to be interviewed for this article.)

Tragedy makes a reality star

John Mark Byers stands by the coffee machine in the Parkway convenience stora
in Millington, Tennessee. He listens, visibly bored, to another man's story about
being wrongfully arrested for a car theft. By anyone's standards, this isn't the
most Interesting tale, but to John Mark Byers, stepfather star of the two
Paradlse Lost HBO documentaries, It's gotta sound dull as dirt. So when the man
finally works around to the part where he gets his car out of the police impound,
Byers intarrupts. "Do you recognize me?” he asks, Impatiently.

The man shakes his head slowly, "I've seen you," he says. Clearly, he has not,
"Were you in this area in '237"
He was.

"Do you remember the three 8-year-olds that were murdered in West Memphls?
One of those three B-year-olds was my son. Do yol remember sesing me in the
media?"

The man registers shock, but he nods politely. Uh-huh, maybe ...

"That's it," Byers says, satisfled. "Feople ask me for my autograph all the time,"
he tells me later. "There wouldn't even have been a Paradise Lost 2 If it wasn't
for me."

He repeats it a couple of times during our two-hour breakfast at the
convenlence store, where we chow dawn on eggs, bacon, biscuits, and grits,
"You don't know what these are,” he says, pointing to the plate heaped with
grits. He's gracious, but it's a challenge; A New York liberal -- which he believes
me to be -- doesn't eat grits, and John Mark Byers doesn't like New Yorkers.

A fot of people don't understand Byers, including & lot of big-city folk who
belleve the WM3 were victims of "hillbilly justice." He reserves special venom for
the producers of Paradise Lost.

"Two Jew-boys from New York City took advantage of our families in this crisis
to make money," he says.

Still, he's gracious. His new wife, Jackie, is a lovely person. They buy me
breakfast and Byers helps me off with my jacket. Me's currently working as a
house painter.

Believing in the guilt of the West Memphis Three and resentful of the
docurmnentarles that stirred up questions about their Innacence, the parents of
James Moore and Steven Branch have mostly avolded the press. Byers, on the
other hand, made quite an impression in Paradise Lost: In ong scene he was
ranting and raving about the details of the crime. In another he curses the men
wha killed his babies, He gave the HBO preducers a kriife, which turned out to
have his and Christopher's blood on Ik, Additionally, It turns out that Byers was
working for the paolice as a drug Informant. His antics made such an impression
on'the HBO producers that, halfway through the filming of Paradise Lost, they
began to believe that he might have been the killer. Byers has a long histery of
drug and alcehol abuse and was drunk throughout the making of both films.

"I wasn't in my right mind," he admits. "I tried to stay on medicine and
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marijuana, and they [Sinofsky and Berlinger] capitalized on that. They set me
up to look like the fool.”

In July 1994, Byers was arrested for contributing to the delinquency of a minor
for allegedly instigating a knife fight between two youngsters. That same month,
he was arrested for burglary. During that summer, neighbors filed restraining
orders against Byers for allegedly whipping their sons with the metal handle of a
flyswatter and firing shots at their home. Byers was on probation when he was
arrested for selling Xanax to a narc in 1999. He served 18 months. His ex-wife,
Melissa, who was highly visible during Paradise, had a longstanding heroin
problem. She died of undetermined causes on March 29, 1996,

Byers made Jackie watch the documentaries the first week they met. "I watched
them and T was like, dang," says Jaclkie Byers. "My major in college wasg
psychology. I'm a pretty good judge of character, and if I thought for one
second he did something terrible in his life T wouldn't have married him."

WM3 supporters have tried to connect Byers to the murders, but they've turned
up very little in the way of hard evidence. His recollections of the crime include
some inaccuracies: He claims the WM3 flunked lie detector tests when there is
no evidence to: support this; he claims Echals had driven by his house a few
months before the murders when Echols never had a driver's license and had
never driven a car.

Misskelley's lawyer, Stidharn, says the case is confused becalse Byers and
Echols both act strange: "[Echols] was a kid and not sophisticatad enough to
understand how he came off. And Byers still doesn't understand how his antics
mace him look gulity."

Byers regrets that he didn't get more money for appearing In the documentaries
and swears he's not going to do another. A few minutes later, he corrects this.
Ha might, If he has a contract and a lawyer by his side. -—

At the end of our Interview, he asks me, "Now that you've met me and ['ve
answerad every question, deo you think I'm the kind of guy who could have dene
such an swful thing?"

D=cades of research by the FBI and hundreds of milliens of dallars committed ta
Investigating the "phenomenon” of satanic murders have not turned (p a single
example of a ritual child-killing in this country by any religious group --
including "Satanists” -- in the last century. As of this writing, Damien Echols has
been on death row 4,796 days.

This story originally appeared In Los Angeles CityBeat,
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Paradise: Still Lost

By Peg Aloi
THE BOSTON FHOENIX

On May 5, 1993, three eight-year-old boys
were savagely murdered in West Memphis,
Arkansas. Three teenagers, Damien Echols,
Jason Baldwin, and Jessie Misskelley Jr,, were
aceused of murdering Michael Moore, Stevie
Branch, and Christopher Byers in what pelice
deemed a ritualistic killing by a Satanic cult.
Echols had clashed with the police before: in
his impoverished Bible Belt community, he
was viewed with suspicion because he dressed
in black, listened to heavy meial, and practiced wicca. Despite the lack of any
significant physical evidence, the failure to investigate several key suspects
(inchuding the father of one of the victims), the dubious testimony of prejudicial
witnesses (including an expert for the prosecution with a -order degree in occult
crime), and a contradiction-riddled confession from Misskelley (wha has an IQ of
72), all three were convicted. Filmmakers Bruce Sinofsky and Joe Berlinger
chronicled the trial and the surrounding events in their award-winning HRO
documentary Paradise Lost: The Child Murders ai Robin Hood Hills. Now, four
years later, a sequel is about to be released: Paradise Lost 2: Revelations.

"When HBO first epproached us to do 2 follow-up film, we were not too keen on it,
to be honest," says Sinofsky in a Manhaiian café. "We could never definitively say
they didn't do it, but what we could say was that there was not a fair trial and justice
wasi't seeved.” Berlinger, speaking rom Balumore, where he is filming a sequel to
The Blair Witch Froject, concurs: "From a filmmaking standpoint, it was like
revisiting the same ground — plus it is just an ugly, depressing, emotionally draining
story. But the important thing is that this story still needs to be told. It can't be swepl
under the rug."

Echols, now 24, is.on Death Row. Baldwin, 21, and Misskelley, 25, are serving life
sentences. But Paradise Lost has gained, well, a cull following: a high-profile rock-
and-roll benefit CD to be released in June features tracks by Rocket from the Crypt,
Willie Nelson, Tom Waits, and many others. And Los Angeles-based activists
founded the West Memphis Three Support Fund, an Internef-based organization that
provides detailed information on the case. The group contacted forensics specialist
Brent Turvey, whose findings have highlighted evidence that wes previously
ignared or played down.

One of the many significant developments has been the involvement of prominent
lawyers like Ed Mallett of Houston and DNA expert Barry Scheck of 0.1, fame,
who are offering their services fo Echols pro bono (as is Attomey Dan Stidham, who
is still defending Misskelley). Sinofiky says, "Although Barry Scheck would never
admi it, the reason that these guys are involved is because of the film, because
without it Damien would probably be dead right now. He [Echols] was going to give
up his appeals and ask to be put to death. T think because of the support fund apd the
thousands of people who write lo liim and express cancern and hope, it has made a
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big difference.”

Although Echols's first appeal was denied in an Arkansus court (by the judge who

sentenced him to death), a federal appeal is being filed. Says Berlinger: "This ~
happened in a very fundamentalist, Bible-thumping part of the country where they

preach every Sunday that the devil is out there. I hope this film has an effect on a

national level, to wake people up to see what has happened.”

Paradise Lost 2: Revelations premieres on HBO this Monday, March 13, 2000 at 10
pm. For more information visit www.wm3.org.
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Hell Hounds

How a musical moral panic destroyed three young men.

Damon Root | April 2003 reason.com

Devwil's Knot: The True Story of the West
Memphis Three, by Mara Leveritt, New York: Atria
Books, 417 pages.

On the afternoon of May 6, 1993, the dead bodies of
three 8-year-old boys were discovered less than half a
mile from their homes in West Memphis, Arkansas.
Stevie Branch, Christopher Byers, and Michael Moore
were found naked, beaten, bound hand to foot with their
shoelaces, and submerged in a water-filled ditch.
Christopher Byers had been castrated. Four weeks later,
West Memphis police announced the arrests of 18-year-old Damien Echols, 17-year-
old Jessie Misskelley Jr., and 16-year-old Jason Raldwin, soon known as the West
Memphis Three.

After six hours of questioning without a parent or lawyer present, Misskelley, a
special education dropout with a history of behavior problems and an IQ of 72,
implicated himself, Baldwin, and Echols during a rambling, factually impossible
“confession” that he subsequently retracted.

"Most of his answers were vague," writes Mara Leveritt in Devil's Knot: The True
Story of the West Memphis Three, her new book on the case. "Many were
contradictory. Almost all began with a prompt by one of the detectives.” The next
morning, without a shred of physical evidence, the police announced they had their
men. Although no one said so at the time, the official theory held the killings to be
"satanic" in nature.

Leveritt, a contributing editor to the Arkansas Times and 1992's Arkansas Reporter
of the Year, had a front row seat. She waiched as the three were tried, dubiously
linked to the cecult, and convicted of murder, During the trial of Damien Echols and
Jason Baldwin, the prosecuting attorney actually defined oeenlt activity for the court
as, in part, "an obsession with heavy metal music, change in forms of dress, wearing
all black. And I believe the proof will show that [Baldwin)] had fifteen shirts with the
heavy metal thing."

Determined to find out whether "something similar to what happened at Salem had
indeed occurred again," Leveritt set out in search of the truth. The resultisa
horrifying and infuriating look at how moral panics over youth culture can lead to
the denial of justice. New ways for the yonng to entertain and identify themselves
constantly arise, and these new ways often lead to prejudiced and absurd
overreactions on the parl of many authority figures,

For example, after the 1969 shootings at Colorado's Columbine High School,
parents, teachers, and politicians fretted over black trench coats, video games, and
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the songs of Marilyn Manson. In 1992, when 18-year-old Wayne Lo wenton a
shooting spree at Simon's Rock College while wearing a shirt advertising the hard-
core band Siek of Tt All, the group's aggressive lyries became a part of the story. Rap
star Eminem is regularly criticized — and has been the subject of congressional
hearings — for allegedly fomenting homophobia, misogyny, and plain old viclence.
Congress is now equating electronic music events — "raves" -- with depraved
crackhouses, and suburban soccer moms are snooping for glow sticks,

The results of such moral panies are frequently just more additions to the history of
misguided rhetoric — though we shouldn't underestimate how hard such panies
make social life and relaticnships with parents for kids with the demonized interests,
In the case that Leveritt examines in Devil's Knot, the panic looks apt to cost at least
one innocent youth his life.

Leveritt details a real-life horror show with six young victims: three brutally
murdered, two in prison for life, and one, Damien Echols, on death row. She
describes an investigation beset with problems and teeming with irregularities. The
crime scene offered little physical evidence, including a complete lack of bload, a
remarkable fact given the brutality involved. This scareity of information, combined
with the sensational nature of the murders, gave rise to wild speculation. "With the
devil so prominent in news reports, ministers were quoted as experts,” Leveritt
notes, "Reporting on satanism beat skepticiam, hands down.”

Satanically speaking, the police actually had significant cause for skepticism. Not
only did the crime scene lack bload, but there were no signs of ritual activity: no
pentagrams, ceremonial candles, or the like. Although the moon had been fuil and
the boys had been hogtied, the crime did not exactly seream Lucifer. Not until one
self-styled occult expert was finished, anyway. County juvenile officer and amateur
"cult cop” Jerry Driver conducted a sort of freelance investigation that, in Driver's
words, immediately started "to zero in on Damien." Driver lobbied, almost single-
handedly, for the oceult theory of the crime, and his behind-the-scenes efforts paid
off.

Police also received unorthodox contributions from Vieki Hutcheson and her 8-year-
old son, Aaron, Operating with tacit police approval, Hutcheson investigated her
neighbor Jessie Misskelley Jr. before he had been charged or implicated in the
murders. With Jessie’s help, she allegedly arranged a date with Damien Echols,
during which she claimed to have attended a witches' gathering, or "esbat."

"Tf [ polive detective Donald] Bray instituted any protections for the young mother as
she prepared to enter a vealm that police suspected might harbor vicious
murderers," Leveritt observes, "neither he nor she ever mentioned theo." After the
trial, Hutcheson conceded she might have been deunk that particular night and
taken the "esbat" idea from the police. She consistently denied, however, that her
actions were in any way influenced by the $35,000 reward she hoped to receive for
bringing the killess to justice.

Hutcheson's young son, Aaron, provided even more help. He claimed he had visited
the Robin Hood Hills woods (where the bodies were discovered) with the murdered
boys and seen robed men engaged in bizarre activities. Later, Aaron's story evolved
into a sclf-contradicting eyewitness statement that eventually included an admission
of his awn guilt.

“Encouraged to tell and retell his story,” Leveritt writes, "he embellished his account
from a man with yellow teeth to scenes of orgies in the woods, and finally to lurid

visions of buckets of blood.” Taken together, the Hutchesons' contributicns —
prompted police to question Jessie Misskelley Jr.
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Despite leading questions and repeated prompts from the officers, Misskelley's
"confession,” which led directly to the arrest of Echols and Baldwin, was wrong
regarding almost every significant aspect of the crime. Misskelley claimed the boys
were anally raped; the medical examiner found no such evidence. He claimed they
were bound with rope (not shoelaces), that only their hands were tied (it was hand to
foot), and that one boy could kick his legs "up in the air." Misskelley repeatedly
maintained that the killings took place in the morning and that the victims had
skipped school (they were there until 2:45 p.m.). "Every detective in the room knew,
even if Jessie did not,"” Leveritt writes, "that the statement was absurd."

As it turned out, Misskelley knew even less than the confession indicated. Aftera
Christian group presented him with some soul-saving literature, Jessie had a
question for his lawyer, Dan Stidham. "There I was, sitting in a jail cell with this
confessed Satanic killer," Stidham later said, "and he's asking me who 'Satin’ is."

The detectives seemed to ignore alternative avenues of investigation that will seem
obvious to readers of Leveritt's book. John Mark Byers, stepfather of the castrated
boy, was no stranger to law enforcement. A failed pawnbroker and jeweler, Byers
was also a convicted drug dealer and undercover drug informant,

As a result, he knew several of the investigating officers personally. Tn 1987 Byers
was convieted of terrorizing his ex-wife after threatening her with a stun gun. City
attorney John Fogleman, who successfully prosecuted the West Memphis Three six
years later, handled that case. Byers received a light sentence: three years of
probation plus child support and gainful employment -- conditions he failed to
fulfill. In 1992, without explanation, Crittenden County Circuit Judge David Burnett
formally expunged Byexs' record of this convietion. Burnett would go on to preside
over the trial and conviction of Echols, Baldwin, and Misskelley,

Given his violent past and the killer or killers' emphasis on his stepson, John Mark
Byers certainly warranted attention. "But if the West Memphis police followed up on
this lead,” Laveritt writes, "they entered no record of it in the file.”

In fact, Byers was never pressed on several key discrepancies concerning the boys'
disappearance. According to Christopher’s 13-vear-old brother, Ryan Clark (Byers
adopted enly Christopher), Ryan bad searched the Robin Hood Hills woods with two
friends until close to midnight, then gone home to bed. Byets, however, told police
that Ryan joined him in ancther round of searching after midnight. Furthermore,
Byers claimed to have searched the wonds alone without a flashlight. Again, the
police "did not press for details about the times Byers had been alone in the vicinity
of where the bodies were discovered,"

During an interview that appeared in the 2000 HBO documentary Revelations:
Paradise Lost 2, Byers chillingly described how the trials bronght back merories of
his own "torture" as a child. "Tt was like they were reading off what happened to me,"
he stated.

Almost three years after her son's murder, Byers' wife, Melissa, also died under
suspicious circumstances, a "possible homicide” that remains unsolved. Perhaps the
most alarming facts arrayed against John Mark Byers, however, concern a hunting
knife he gave the makers of the HBO documentary for Chiristmas. In December 1993,
eight months after the murders, West Memphis police searched the Byers and
Moore homes, an extremely unusual move with three suspects already set for trial,
Conveniently, Byers presented his gift just one day before the search.

The knife, which matched police descriptions of the murder weapon, contained
blood consistent with that of both the slain boy and his stepfather. Byers' statements
only compounded this mystery. Although he originally told police the knife "had not
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been used at all," Byers later testified that he had, probably, cut his finger on it

In November 2000, Dan Stidham, Jessie Misskelley's lawyer, filed a motion with
Judge Burnett requesting new DNA tests of several items, including Byers' bloody
knife, "Additional testing with new, more sensitive, and more discriminzting tests,”
Stidham wrote, "may help resolve previonsly inconelusive test results." To date,
Stidham has received no response.

Ultimately, black clothes, heavy metal musie, and weird beliefs outweighed improper
procedures, false testimony, and reasonable doubt. "I have personally observed
people wearing black fingernails, having their hair painted black, wearing black T-
shirts, black dungarees,” testified Dale Griffis, the prosecution’s "occult expert.”
Although the defense argued that Griffis' maﬂ-order Ph.D. from "Columbia Pacific
University" did not qualify him as an expert, Burnett disagreed. The prosecntion also
introduced the cover of Metallica's Muaster of Puppets album, the fact that Echols
practiced Wicea and enjoyed books by Stephen King and Anne Rice, and testimony
"that eleven black T-shirts had been found in Jason's home."

The prosecutors' linkage of rock with Satanism and murder has deep roots. Rock,
like its predecessor the blues, has in many ways eultivated an evil reputation. Blues
legend Robert Johnson, whose songs include "Hellhonnd on My Trail" and "Me and
the Devil Blues," is said to have sold his soul for musical skills. The Beatles placed
occult icon Aleister Crowley on the cover of their seminal album Sgt. Pepper's
Lonely Hearts Club Band. The Rolling Stones solidified their bad hoy image with the
1968 hit "Sympathy for the Devil." There's a huge catalog of more explicitly Satanic
classics, such as Slayer's "Allar of Sacrifice," Morbid Angel's "Fall From Grace," Iron
Maiden's "The Number of the Beast,” and Venom's "In League With Satan.”

It goes without saying, of course, thal none of these artists actually wants to murder
children or bury the world in brimstone. Rather, they wish Lo shock and deliglt
audiences with dynamic music and the excitement of transgressive identities.

Yet while Leveritt clearly understands this, she fails in Devil’s Knot to fully explore
the gross misinterpretation of popular music at the heart of the ease. Instead,
Leveritt also plays to prejudice — against Christians rather than pagans. She is all too
willing to write off the palice, prosecutors, and their witnesses as deluded by their
religious heliefs. "The spiritual landseape was rigorously Christian," she intones,
"and rigorously literal." Well, mayhe. But the impulse to link young people's music
and ¢lothes with dangerous, unnatural forees is not a regional, or even religious,
phenomenaon. As the predictable resnonses to Columbine, Wayne Lo, Eminem, and
raves show, such confusion is on display everywhere, and not restricted to
Christians.

Of course, that such foolish, simplistic connections between music and criminality
are readily drawn everywhere provides zero comfort to Echols, Baldwin, and
Misskelley. But their plight has at least not gone unnoticed. In 1006 HBO hroadeast
the documentary Paradise Lost: The Child Murders at Robin Hood Woods.
Featuring music from Metallica and using trial footage, TV elips, and interviews, the
film convinced many that the West Memphis Three were the victims of a modern
day witch hunt. Roger Ebert declared, "Everybody in the town and in the courtroom
and on the jury are all blinded by their fantasies about Satanic cults.”" The New York
Times called the Emmy-winning filin "trae erime reporting at its most bitterly
revealing.” The sequel followed four years later, while benefit albums with musicians
including Eddie Vedder, Henry Rollins, and Hank Williams IT have also hit record
store shelves. Three California residents, inspired by the film, started the Web site
www,wm3.org. Visitors can download documents from the trials, find out the latest
information, and purchase various products with the slogan "Free the West
Memphis Three."
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Yet as Edward Mallett, the attorney now handling Damien Echols' appeal, told The
__ Atlanta Journal-Constitution last year, T don't think judges are fayorably affected
~ " by young people's gronps and Web sites.” Indeed, except for the efforts of their
attorneys, there may be little more anybody can do for the West Memphis Three,
Several appeals are pending, including motions to retest evidence and secure a new
judge, and family members are aceepting donations for a legal defense fund.
Otherwise, the wheels of justice are grinding exceedingly slowly.

Leveritt is ultimately convinced that Salem did in fact repeat itself. Most readers will
be as well. Devil's Knot is a powerfual cautionary tale about the awesome and
frequently careless power of law enforcement and the damage it can do when
informed by ignorant moral panics and mchecked by rational individuals.

will be at sixspace gallery September 6 through 20,
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WEST MEMPHIS MURDER CASE ATTORNEY
SPEAKS TO STUDENTS, PUBLIC AT
INTERNATIONAL COLLEGE SEPTEMBER 14,
2002

DEFENSE ATTORNEY DAN STIDHAM COMES TO NAPLES DUE
TO PERSISTENCE OF A CRIMINAL LAW AND PROCEDURE
STUDENT

Naples, FL - Attorney Dan Stidham has been thrust into the media
spotlight since being appointed to represent one of the “West Memphis
37 in 1993. Stidham will share his experiences and insight on this
compelling case with students and the general public at International
College in North Naples at | p.m., September 14.

On May 6, 1993, three eight-ycar-old boys, were found dead ina
dramage ditch in West Memphis, Arkansas. Three teens, now adults,
were convicted for allegedly torturing and mutilating the boys in a
Satanic ritual. T'wo of those teens —Jessie Misskelley, whom Stidham
represents, and Charles Jason Baldwin — were sentenced to life in
prison. The third, Damien Echols, is on death row. Stidham maintains
his chient’s innocence and continues to represent Misskelley.

Stidham's journey to Naples is the result of a class project Legal Studies
Professor Jack Breiden assigned to summer term students in his
Saturday morning Criminal Law and Procedure class.

Instead of giving his students a dry, hypothetical case study lo analyze,
Breiden gave them background on the West Memphis murder case on
their first day. He also showed his class the two HBO documentaries on
the murder case. Guest speakers also were brought in for additional

perspective.

Students say they fed off of Breiden's enthusiasm and each other’s
motivation. David Brinckman, 43, of Cape Coral drove more than 16
hours to visit the site where the boys were found, took photos and
interviewed townspeople as part of a fact-finding mission. Another
student, Celia Fellows, 42, of Naples, tracked Stidham until she was
able to get him on the phone to answer questions. Fellows is now on
Stidham’s “buddy list.”

Breiden said he is thrilled with his students’ initiative and determination.

“T didn’t know they’d becomie so involved. I feel good about being able
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to spark an excitement in them,” said Breiden, who has taught at the
College for 10 years. “T can’t believe Dan Stidham is coming to Naples
to speak with my students.”

Fellows, 42, of Naples, said Stidham’s insight was critical to answering
questions for her term paper. She admits, however, that she never
expected to hear from Stidham.

“I'had too many nnanswered questions,” Fellows said, “I looked at this
case from a constitutional point of view. In my opinion, I don’t think
they received a fair trial,”

Knowing how excited classmates were about the case, Fellows asked
Stidham if he would visit the college. To her surprise, he agreed.

“Stidham has been very accessible and helpful, I'm so thrilled he’s
coming,” she said.

Fellow student David Brinckman, of Cape Coral, 43, also is looking
forward to Stidham’s visit. He and another student drove half a day to
West Memphis in search of their own answers. Brinckman took photos,
interviewed West Memphis citizens and Memphis police. He gathered
all his notes and photos and gave a first-hand Power Point presentation
to the class.

“The bottom line was, I couldn’t get the information from officials in
West Memphis by phone or email. I needed to see what I was picturing
in my mind,” he said. “Professor Breiden's class really enhanced the
education because we had real results.”

Dan Stidham said he is eager to speak with Breiden’s class and others at
International College.

“Part of my motivation for speaking out about this case is the hope that [
can somehow keep a similar tragedy from occurring again,” he said, “I
hope people can somehow take away the lesson that we can all learn
from this tragedy and be inspired to work to improve our justice system,
not just for the West Memphis 3, but for all the potential Jessie
Misskelleys out there in the world >

As part of his interactive lecture, Stidham will cover criminal profiling,
police interrogation techniques, false confessions, criminal defense
strategies, juvenile and Miranda issues, forensic science issues,
polygraph issues, “Satanic Panic,” and media issues in a high profile
case.

Law enforcement and attorneys in Lee and Collier counties have heen
invited to attend Stidham's lecture, Breiden said. Stidham has presented
similar lectures at college campuses around the country and to
professional organizations like the Arkansas Bar Association, the
Arkansas Trial Lawyers Association and the Academy for Behavioral
Profiling. He has made appearances on several national television
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networks, including NBC Nightly News, MSNBC and Court TV’s
Prime Time Justice. The first HBO documentary is entitled, “Paradise
Lost.” The sequel is called “Paradise Lost: Revelation.”

<l—[if IsupportLineBreakNewLine]--> <l—[endif]-->
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West Memphis murder case gains students'
attention '

By TOSHEENA ROBINSON-BLAIR

Daily News Journal

Murfreesboro, TN (Dee. 5, 2006)

The attorney whe represented a teenager convicted of killing three B-yeai-okd boys in West
Memphis, Ark., 13 years ago told Rutherford Counly high school students that his elieni
is probably innocenl of the crime.

Students at Blackman High School have been studying the murder case, which grabbed
national headlines in May 1893, and Blackman criminal justica insiructor Rishard Kimberly
invited aftorney Dan Stidham te the school last week to shara his visws about the case.

"| wanted the kids (o hear what it was like going through what he (Stidham) went through fo
represent this young boy," sald Kimberly, 2 refired criminal defense attornay.

Second-graders Steve Branch, Chrisiopher Byers and Michael Moare were out riding
bicycles on a Wednesday afternoon 13 years ago when they went missing. Their hodies
wara found the follawing day within 10 feet of sach ather in Ten Mile Bayou, the cily's main
dralnage ditch.

Damien Echols, 18, Jason Baldwin, 16; and Jessie Misskelley, 17; known as the Wes|
Memphils 3, were cenvicted of the murders. Echols was the only one sentenced to death,
Baldwin is serving life without parale and Misskelley was sentenced to life in prison plus 40
yaars.

Stidham, a Paragould, Ark., attornay, told the studeirts thal he "like averybody slse,
assumed my client (Misskellay) was gullty.”

"There Is nothing worse for a defense lawyer thar to have an ifngcent client,” Stidham sald.

Misskelley admitted he was present when the murders occumed and running after and
calching one of the victims, who triad lo escape. But he sald the other two teens carried aut
the killing.

Itis belioved that the boys were sacrificed 2 part of 2 Salanic cull rituzal,

Slidharm told the students that Misskelley had the mental capacity of a G-year-old and was

coarced by police irilo canfessing. Polica subjected him to 12 hours of questioning without

counsel or parental consent and did not audiotape the entire conversation. Misskeliey later
recanted his story.

About 200 criminal justice students from across the county watched parls of a two-hour
slide prasentation aboul 1he case Friday,

Kimberly said he followed the case from the beginning through two television
documentaries.

"It is my belief, evan asida from even guilt or innocence, that the case was a poster case for
miscarriage of justica,” he sald. "1 fry to steer my students away fram making judgments
about puilt or innocence because thal's nol really the point. The paint Is were thelr
constitulional rights upheld? Were thay vielated? In this case it was a rush to Judgment. Mr.
Stidham calls it Satanic panic.”

Blackman students parlicipated In a mock trial of the casa prior ta Friday's prasantation.
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"I thought the presentation was goad, but he (Stidham) fried to lead us into thinking that they
ware not guilty,” said sanior Matthew Hysmith. "l don'l think any of tha kids did it, though."

La Vergne High sophmore Keitorria Edmonds said the facts were interesting.

"I gol a lot from it." said Edmonds, who is considering a career in law. “From the moviz, |
could tell most of the stuff was Inadmissable and shouldn't have been usad. It wasn't fair at
all."

L& Vergne junjor Laura Benitez look a different view.

“Its jusl unbelievable what they did,” she said, "They shouldn't have kilied the three little
bays. Th?;d dlitdn'l do anything. | think the guys wers guilty. From the avidenca, they looked
like they e

Stidham, who's now a judge, said he has assumed a supporting role in the case.

"love dolng this. It gives me an opportunity to nol only talk aboul this case, bul to make
sure that nothing like this aver happens again,” ha said.

Slidham Is a sirong advocate of videctaped police Inlsrrogations from beginning lo and.,

"It not enly protects the accusad, but it also protects the officers from later being accused of
engaging in coercive tactios,” he said.

Ha believes if Misskellsy was given a second trial the results would be “dramatically
different.”

This story originally appeared in the Daily News Journal in Murfreeshora, TN
at: wwwdnf. com
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Interview with Mara Leveritt

www.maraleveritt.com
- This interview was conductad by email Nov. 29, 2006:

ML: You had young sons of your own and a young
Iaw practice when you were asked to represent
Jessie Misskelley, Jr. How were you brought into
the case and how did it effect your personal and
professionsl life, both in the early days and in the
years since?

DS: My oldest son was 8 years old in 1993, the exact same age as the victims,
Michael Moore, Stevie Branch and Chris Byers. My youngest son just turnied 10 a
few months ago. Having young children from the time of the trials until now has
made my involvement in the case a little more difficult

There were lawyers that had approached the conrt and volunteered to represent
Damien Echols and Jason Baldwin. T did not seek the appointment in any way,
Apparently no one volunteered to represent Jessie Misskelley. Tt may have been due
to the confession, but I am not sure about this. As it tumed out, Judge David
Goodson, who was from Paragould, my hometown, just happened to be on the
bench in West Memphis the day that the three defendants were brought before the
court for their first appearances. He had the task of appointing lawyers for each of
the defendants beeanse the local public defender in Criftenden County advised the
court that he had a conflict of inferest with (e case. I found out vears later that his
“conflict” was thal hie was 4 Christian and could not represent a “devil worshiper.”

Judge Goodson called me at home early that morning and asked me if'1 would be
willing to take on the task. My initial reaction was “no,” but 1 was intrigued just
enough to ask the judge if I could have a few minutes to think it over and discuss it
with Greg Crow, my law partner, at the time. He only gave me & few mimutes to
decide, and when [ conld not find Mr. Crow, [ had (o make the call on my own. 1
asked my Wife, Kim, what she thought aboul the situation. I was surprised when she
told me I should do it, s0 I ealled the judge back in Marion, and accepted the
appointment,

It would be an understatement to say that the whole experience of the case tarned
my world upside down. The many challenges that I faced, of course, were and still
are, pale in comparison to the saffering that the six families of the victims and the
defendants have endured. My family made a lot of sacrifices, and put up with my
absence on many occasions, including holidays, birthdays, ball games, etc. due to
the many yesars of investigation and appeals. My oldest son asked me once if 1 loved
Jessie Misskelley more than [ loved him and his brothers and sisters. That was
tough! Through it all, however, they stood besice me and eacouraged me to continue
the fight.

Initially, the case did create a palpable measure of contempt for Mr, Crow's and my
involvement in it. Our local community really had a hard time initially coming to
grips with our involvement in such & gruesome and horrible case. As the real facts of
the case began to emerge, however, the public perception of our involvement began
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to change. 1n 2000, when [ was out campaigning for judge—a part-time judicial
position—people here told me they admired me for sticking by my client and for
doing what was right. We won the election by a wide margin.

1t is no secret that serving as court-appointed counsel for Mr, Misskelley created
some financial hardship for Mr. Crow and myself. 1 worked on this case, and really
almost nothing else, for the last six months of 1993 and the first three months of
1994, Eventually, our law practice recovered. Adding insult to injury was the fact
that we did not gei paid for representing Mr. Misskelley for about two years after the
trial was over. In addition, we had more attorney hours in the case than both the
other legal teams, and yet we were awarded the lowest fee. It amounted to just
$19.00 per hour for each of the 2000 plus hours we had accumulated in the case up
through the trial. The Arkansas Supreme Court awarded us a fee for the direct
appeal, but 1 have worked pro bono on the case for the last 10 years.

For years, | worked alone on the case, all the time begging Jawyers and forensic
experts to assist me. My only real allies at {hat time were not lawyers or forensic
experts, bul investigative reporters from the Arkansas Times and HBO. The
Arkansas Times stood alone a3 (he only media outlet in the entire state who dared
question the verdicts in this case and ask the simple but important question, *“Where
is the evidence?’

After the releass of Paradise Lost on HBO in 1996, the case teceived a great deal of
national and international ettention. Lawyers (outstanding lawyers like Ed Mallent
from Houston, Texas, and Barry Sheck from New York) began to appear on the
seene o assist Damien Echols. 1 think that this was due in large measure o the fact
that Damien Echols is on death row and the need to assist him was far more pressing
than with the other two defendants.

Despite persisting begging, [ could not find a lawyer in Arkansas, initially, who -
would agree to volunteer to work on the case on behalf of Jason Baldwin or Jessie

Misskelley. 1 even assisted Jason Baldwin with his appeals becanse his family ¢ould

not afford to hire a lawyer to work on his appeal. The time wag about to run on one

particular aspect of his appeals. Bventually, I was able to persnade twao of the best

criminal defense lawyers in Arkansas, John Wesley Hall and Jeff Rosenzwieg, to

help with the case. Jeff1s still invalved in the case today.

In all candor, L must say that I didn’t want to be & lawyer any more the day after the
Arkansas Supreme Court affirmed Jessie Misskelley’s cenviction in 1996. For the
first and only time, I actually considered walking away from both the case and my
chosen profession. The way (hal the court refused to address one of our issues on
appeal was particularly hard for me o understand. That issue, which would have
required an automatic reversal of Mr, Misskelley’s conviction and rendered his
entire confession invalid, was not even addressed by the Supreme Court. Instead, the
court ruled that the issue had not been raised in a timely fashion even though Mr.
Crow and | had raised the very issne in the form of a written motion, and beief, both
of which were pam of the official record of the case. After licking my wounds for a
few days, 1 decided that this setback would only serve to focus and strengthen my
resolve.

The release of Paradize Lost II: Revelations on HBO in the Spring of 2000, brought
many changes to the case. On the day after the film aired, I received 1500 emails
from all over the world asking how to help. The attention to the case that the film
gencrated resulted in the most profound acts of compassion and generosity that [
heve ever experienced. In addition to the many thousands of smaller donations to the
WMS3 legal defense fund, there have been several substantial gifts made by truly
“anonymons benefactors” and from some very well known celebritics as well.
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Of all people who have come forward and wanted to truly make a difference in this
case, and believe there have been many, the one that stands out the most in my mind
is Eddie Vedder of Pearl Jam. His contribution to the case does not stand out to me
because of any particular dollar figure associated with it—{frankly [ don’t know
how mugh, if any, money he has contributed to the case)—instead it stands out to
me personally because of his enormous compassion for humanity in general, and
Justice in particular for the WM3, He is, without a doubt, the most genuine, caring
and compassionate person that I have ever met. This is 2 man who really wants to
make a diffexence in this world, and his list of endeavors goes far beyond helping
the WM3.

ML: You took the unusnal step of testifying on Jessie’s behalf at his Rule 37
hearing, in which he claimed he had received “ineffective assistance of
counsel.” As I recall, the lawyers who represented Damien and Jason did not do
that. What, essentially, did you tell the Court in support of Jessie’s appeal?

DS: Actually, Mr. Misskelley’s Rule 37 Petition has not yet been adjudicated by the
Court. Neither has Mr. Baldwin’s Rule 37 Petition. I was actually subpoenaed and
testified at Mr. Echol's Rule 37 hearing in Jonesboro.

The primary reason for my being subpoenaed for Echols’ Rule 37 hearing was the
unique issue raised by Echols’ lawyers regarding the money paid to the Defendants
by HBO. The Echols team argued that the arrangement adversely affected the
outcome of the Echols/Baldwin trial, I was subpoenaed to bring attention to the fact
that 1 had handled that issue differently than did Echols and Baldwin’s lawyers, I felt
that it was improper for me 1o be involved in any negotiations with HBO back in
1993, so I helped the Misskelleys retain separate counsel to deal with that issue, 1
don’t want to create any misconceptions about this issue. Ultimately, some of the
money from HBO was used o hirc experts, ete. for the Misskelley defense, just like
m the Echols/Baldwin trials. The only difference was that T didn’t negotiate with
HBO.

Val Price, one of two lawyers who represented Damien Echols at trial, was called lo
testify at Echols’s Rule 37 hearing. I anticipate that I will be called as witness by
counsel for both Beldwin and Miszkclley when their petitions are heard. My beliefis
that the court is waiting to see the results of the current DNA testing before ruling on
these petitions.

MLz Ts it generally the rule in the United States that claims of ineffective
assistance of connsel are heard by the trial judge, or is Arkansas unique in this?

DS: 1 am only familiar with the rule in Arkansas, but T am tald that it is somewhat
unusual. The rationale employed by Arkansas courts on this particular issne is that
the trial judge who presided over the actual trial is in a superior position to judge the
effectiveness of trial counsel, which is the primary issue in a Rule 37 proceeding.
The trial judge’s ruling is then reviewed by the sppellate coust.

ML: You've told me that certain rulings in Jessie’s case illustrate some
concerns you have about the treatment of juveniles under Arkansas law,
especially when the juveniles have heen charged as adults. Can you explain
some of these concerns?

DS: My concern about the law with regard to juveniles being tried as adults in the
Misskelley case was centered around the fact thatunder the juvenile code in 1993,
no juvenile in Arkansas could waive their “Mirands” rights without a parent also
being present and signing off on the waiver. This did not occur in this case. Since
Mr. Misskelley was 17 at the time of the alleged crimes, we argued that his
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confession should be inadmissible because the police did not get a Miranda waiver
from Misskelley's father.

‘The Arkansas Supreme Court roled that since Mr. Misskelley was charged by the
state as an “adult,” the juvenile code did not apply, thereby making his status as a
Jjuvenile inconsequential, Interestingly, had Misskelley been charged as a juvenile,
with some lesser crime, he would have been entitled 1o the same “protections™
afforded to other 17-year-olds, and his confession would have been “tossed out.”
Sinee the confession was the only evidence offered againat Misskelley at trial, the
case would have been over before it started.

We argued, unsuccessfilly of course, that this was a vielation of the “equal
protection clause” of the U.8. Constitution. The issue, in a ruishell, is: shouldn’t the
level of constitutional safeguards for a child be the same, or greater, if that child is
facing a serious punishment, or even the ultimate punishment, the death penalty? It
seems to me that any juvenile should have the benefit of having their parent present
under such dire circumstances. No parent would want their child questioned by
police for any crime, much less one where the death penalty could be imposed,
without the benefit of them being present and assisting the child with making a
decision such as this.

‘The way the court applied the rule, the parent would have & right to he present and
sign the waiver if the child had thrown a rock through someone’s window, but not if
they were being questioned abont a “serious™ crime like murder. 1t's not like the
police didn’t know what they were wanting to talk to Misskelley about, it was a
murder cage. They didn’t follow the rule, but the court held that it didn’t matter
since Misskelley was charged as an “adult” instead of as “juvenils.” This rule seems
even less logical when you consider how and when every prosecutor determines
whether or ot to file a case in juvenile court. If the prosecutor knows that any
confession in the case is going to ruled inadmissible if the case if filed in juvenile =
court, do you think that he or she will filed it there knowing that he/she will lose the
case? No way!

When you add the fact that Misskelley was not only a juvenile, but he was mentally
handicapped as well, the unfairess of the situation becomes even more appareat,

ML: Six years ago this month you filed a motion with Judge David Burnett
seeking additional testing of evidence in Jessie’s case, Please putline the legal
process that followed and tell us where the DNA testing stands now.

DS: Back in 1993, DNA technology was in il's infancy. It now has evolved into a
much more definite process and new DNA technology has overtumed many
wrongful convictions in this country and prevented many more from talling place in
the first place. As I recall, I filed that motion prior to the Arkansas Legislature
passing the relatively new DNA testing act that allows prisoners to conduct DNA
analysis of evidence in their case. The motion was amended 1o include the
procedures and protections that were incorporaied mto the DNA statule.

After the initial motion and amended motion were filed with the court, the new
lawyers involved in the case took over the process of negotiating with the
prosecution and establishing the proper protocol for getting certain items of
evidence tested at an approved DNA testing facility. This process of negotiating and
entering into an agreed order to accomplish the testing itgelf has faken a
tremendously long period of time. 1t is laking even longer (o complete the testing.

Despite the fact that this is a very complicated igsue, I have been extremely
frustrated at the length of time this all has taken. Unfortunately, I am not at liberty to
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discuss the exact details and the exact status of the DNA testing, but I can say that 1
think that we are getting very close to the end of the process. I am extremely hopeful
about the ovtcome of this DNA testing and I continue to hope, and pray, that it will
assist us in establishing the innocence of the three convicted defendants and bring
the real killer, or killets to justice.

ML: I know you've spoken to law groups about tiis case. What is the general
reaction of those audiences? What questions do you hear most often?

DS: T began speaking about the case at bar assaciation and trial lawyers functions
almost immediately after the trials were over, Over the years, I have spoken to other
professional groups, including criminal profilers and forensic specialists. I also get
mvited to speak about the WM3 case on college campuses. I really love to do this as
it gives me a unique opportunity to discuss a case that, in many ways, has become an
icon for injustice in America.

The question that [ hear most is, “How could this have happened in America?”
Audiences from cutside the state (including lawyers, forensic experts, academics
and students), are just absolutely stunned at the lack of any real, or physical,
evidence against Baldwin and Echols, and the fact that a man could be en death row
based on such evidence. They incorrectly assume that this kind of thing could only
happen in Arkansas, or some other place in the “sonth.” I take them through other
examples of similar miscmriage of justice cases in places like California (the
MeMartin pre-school case) and New York (the Ceantral Park jogger case) and they
begin to realize that this kind of thing can—and does—happen everywhere.

In the beginning, it seemed that T would only get invited to speak outside of
Arkansas. This began to changs, however, with the release of your book, Devil's
Knot. Suddenly, people from Arkansas began to get informed and very interested in
the case. They were also very stunned at the facts of the case that wers not réported
in the media during the trials or that ¢ould not be compacted into the format of s 2 %
hour HBO documentary.

Shertly afler the [2002] release of Devil’s Knot, which by the way, is
unquestionably the authoritative reference source on the WM3 case, I was invited to
speak at the “Equal Justice Works Symposium on Wrongful Convictions™ at my
alma mater, the University of Arkansas School of Law in Fayetteville. This was both
an honor, and a milestone, in that it was the first time that T had been invited to
speak shout the “WM3” case in the state of Arkansas at an event where the case was
overtly focused on as a “wrongful conviction.” 1 had the honer of serving as a
panelist with Attorney J. Gordon Clooney of Philadelphia, who has successfully
exonerated a wrongfully accused man on death row in Louisians, and Court TV host
and commentator, James Curtis.

The two most recent lectures that [ have given were right here in Arkansas and were
before two of the largest crowds that I have spoken to. The first was earlier this year
at the University of Central Arkansas in Conway and the latest was last weel at
Arkansas Tech University in Russellville. In addition to an overview of the case, 1
also speak about specific issues like “satanic panic.” false confessions and criminal
profiling techniques.

ML: Because of Damien’s death sentence; much of the post-trial legal effort has
centered on his case, Some of us have presumed that rulings that affect him
might also affect the prospects of Jason and Jessie. Is that a valid assumption?

DS: I think that a “domino effect” could be likely should Echols be granted & new
trial. The one issue that might not be included in this effect, of course, would be the
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confession issue since it only relates technically to Mr. Misskelley. It is conceivable

that Mr. Baldwin end Mr. Echols could receive new trials and that Mr. Misskelley's
conviction might stand independently due to his so-called confession. The

confession issue-is unique (o the Misskelley case although it is now clear that the -
Echols/Baldwin jurors considered the Misskelley confession even though it was

inadmissible in their trial and they were instructed by the court not to consider it in

their deliberations. We know this because the jury had listed the Misskelley

confession as (he #1 reason 1o convicl Echols and Baldwin in (heir notes which

appeared in the jury room after the trial.

ML: Please explain the status of all appeals at this moment.

DS: Other than the DNA tesling issues, Damien Echols hag exhausted his state
appeals and is now in federal court ot what is considered his final “stage™ of
appeals, While there are other ways that he could try and mount collateral aitacks on
his conviction, he is essentially down to the last appeal in Faderal District Court.

Misskelley and Baldwin still have not exhausted their state appeals as they both
have their Rule 37 Petitions atill pending before Judge David Burnett. These include
the ineffective assistance of counsel claims that Echols has already litigated. They
have the beneft of being able to have whatever results we get from any of the DNA
testing currenlly in progress prior to exhausting the last of their state appeals, and as
stich, are in a better position procedurally than Hehols. Assuming that their last state
appeals ars unsuecessful, they, 1oa, would move on to their “one shot™ final appeal
in federal court.

MI.: You recently described yonr current role as mainly that of “cheerleader.”
What can you tell us about the legal teams that are now in place? What can we
expect from them in the months ahead?

DS: This is a hard issue for peaple to understand due to the way our system of
Justice is set up and the rather unique qualities of this particular case. Because |
obviously cannot present my own “ineffectiveness of counsel™ arguments on behalf
of Mr. Misskelley to Judge Burnett, other lawyers have 1o represent Mr. Misskelley
on this issue, This is why 1 have been trying to recruit other lawyers to represent Mr.
Misskelley for a number of years so that this claim can be presented to the Courl.

Because of this, and the adversarial nature of our criminal justice system, I atn
digqualified from being a part of the "Misskelley Defense leam” when it comes to
presenting evidence of my own “ineffectiveness™ to the Court. [ know thisisa
complicated issue, but T really am incapable of explaining it any better.

Yes, it is true that 1 am no longer “counsel of record”™ because of the issues set forth
above. T cannot be. T am, however, counsel of “origin®” so to speak, and have been on
the ground since day one back in 1993. [ made a promise to Jessie Misskelley almost
14 years ago that 1 would fight for him as long as it takes, end 1 have every intention
of keeping that promise so long as [ am not conflicted out of any particular igsue on
appeal, and so long as | continue to have the confidence of the Misskelley family
and the consent of the other lawyers involved.

Over the years, [ have seen several lJawyers come and go in this case. I can tell you
without any hesitation whatsoever, that Mr. Misskelley, Mr. Baldwin, and Mr.
Echols are quite fortunate to have the caliber of legal talent working for them that is
currently in place. These are the brightest and most qualified lawyers that T have
ever encourtered. While 1 haven't had the pleasure of meeling Mr. Echol's new
lawyer, Dennis Riordan, he enjoys a fantastic reputation. | can’t say enough about
attorney John Phillipsborn, from San Francisco, who is now representing Jason
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Baldwin. 1 consider him to be one of the very best criminal defense lawyers in the
entire country. I have waiched as his leadership has brooght together an amazing
team of lawyers and forensic experts from around the country to work on this case,
including Attomey Michael Burt, from Los Angeles, who is now lead attorney for
Mr. Misskelley.

ML: Is there anything you’d like to add? Any confusion you've encountered
with regard to this case that you®d like to clear up? Any word about Jessie’s
outlook-and your own—you’d like to pass along?

DS: I would just ask that everyone continue to pray for justice in this case. Not just
simply justice for the WM3, but justice for these innocent victims and their families,
wha deserve somuch more than what they received by way of a meaningful
investigation into these horrible crimes.

I'would also ask everyone to remember that this miscarriage of justice oceurred
because of intolerance and fear. Now that we knnow that there is no such thing as
“satanic ritualistic homicide” and that “false conlessions™ are real and do happen,
maybe we can work together to avoid tragedies like this from ever happening again.

To read Stidham's analysis of the muyder investigation and triais, go to Synopsis of
the Case at Wii{3.0rg.

| professional profile | articles | disclaimers | speaking program | links | contact us

all content copyright (¢) Dan Stidham
No.uss without permission
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Dan Stidham's Case Synopsis

Note: The orighial version of this synapsis was wnitten dining Jessle
Misskelley’s trial In 1994. At that Hme Dan Stidham did nat have the
2 assistance of a farensic sclentist or 2 criminal prefiler. Mr. Stidham
el has written new notes to update his case synopsls for our web sits In
B order to address newly discoversd evidence and findings, to answer
B guastions relating to his client Jessle Misskalley and to point out the
Important Infarmation that the Jury was nol permitled to see or
hear. The new portfons of the synapsis are shewn in Nlalies and were
added by Mr. Sticdham an June 27, 1999,

32 a xLF,"

A. Poor investigation of crime scene

l

C 1AM

1, Crimea Scene not properly secured resulting in loss of potantial evidence,

a. After discovery of first body, the crime scene was literally trampled, especially the
SITE SEARCH: croak bed,

b. Budies ware removed from the water too guickly, prior to the arrivat of coroner
(who was almust two hours late In arriving st aime scene) and placed on diteh bank
Beaos In the sun destraying Invaluable evidence ragarding lime of death, I.e. body

<pldderiine.com temperature, rigor mortis, etc, (creek bed should have been drainged leaving bodies
where they were, thereby preserving potentizl valuable evidence).

¢, Corantr's Investigation was extremely substandard which led to the destruction of
veluable avidence and ultimate misunderstanding of evidence by police,

d. Police dig not kesp the facts of the crime scane confidential, especisily the
injuries to the bodles, Rumors of sexual mutilation were reported In the naws mecdla
arnd widely circulated throughout West Memphis as avidencad by the officers notes
frem interregating potantial suspects about what they had heard aboutthe
milrders.

B. Legitimate facts from crime scene
L. Bodies faund nude, bound with own shoe strings In "hog-tie" fashion;

Z. All bodies had substantial injuries to head, with one body (C. Byers) having been
sexually mutilated, the testcles remaved and tha head of the penls removed with
the shaft intact but having been "skinnad”, The testicles and head of the penis were
not recovarad; (Medical examiner testified in Echpls/Baldwin trizl that whoever did
the mutilation had some knowledge of anatomy and wis quite meticulous. The
rivtilation would have taken quite some time to perform even under [aberatory
conditions, and almoest impossible to do In the water, in the dark, with theusands of
msquitoes swarming. Bodlies had no Insect bites.)

Update: After consulting with forensic experts In 1997 and 1935, It was lsarned that
Dr. FPerretti's testimany at the EcholsiBaldwin frial was not exactly accurare, The
sexual mutilation of the victim Byers was anything but meticulous. In fact, It was
quite crude The lesticles and part of the penis were literally ripped off the victim. In
addition, the entire genital area of the vict'm Byers wos covered in gouge-lika
wounids indicative of rage andfor punlshment of this particular viotim that was nat
present in the other victims, This has alven us bremendous Insfeht into the passible
offenderis). For more specific iformmation see Brenl Turvey's Criminal Profile of this
crime.

In addition, aftzr consuiting with a forensic entomologist, it was learped that some
of the wounds Lo the bodles cowld be the result of post murtem Reding on the
bodies by insects or crayfish and not wounds inflicted by the offendar(s). Tha
entomolagist; alofig with Mr. Turvey, alsa aava us interasting insiaht on the time of
death of the wictims which makes the times put forth by Misskeltey in his se-called
cunfession virtually Impassible.

Mr. Turvey, in examining the autopsy phatogranhs of the victim, Branch, discovered
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what he belleved could be @ human bite mark. Upon his advise, we consulted a
farensic odontelogist who testified that the semi-circled mark abave tia victin's
right eye was a humen bite mark. Dental Impressions were taken of the three
convicted defendants, Echols, Baldwin & Misskelley, and they each were occluded &5
the source of the bite mark on the victim 8ranch,

3. Mast of tha boye' clothes were faund in the water with the bodies. The clothes
were mostly Inside out, not torn. The pants were still zipped, but inside out. Two of
the boys underwear briefs were not recoversd; (Experts say that serial ldllers ofter
leaep the underwear and body parts of their victims as trophies),

Update: Brent Turvey's Investigation and criminal profile reveals that the offender(s)
In this case most likely knew the victims and were from the area where the victims
ihved. Nothing In the facts of the case suggest that & serial type killer was
rasponsible for this erime,

4. Two human halrs were found an the bodies, ane Caucasian, one Negroid In
arigin; (Halrs cannot be conclusively matched. Comparisons are done to exclude
suspacts.) One halr was "microscoplcally similar® to Echols, but it was also similar to
another suspect and one of the victims' father, and as such, has no real evidentiary
value, What does have evidentiary value, however, 5 the Négroid hair, In so much
as the teenagers convicted are all Caucasian. In addition, Mr. Bojangles was a black
male.

5. Several clothing fibers were found on the bodics; (Fibers, like hair, cannot be
matched, only labeled microscopically similar or dissimilar. One fiber was similar to
Jasan's mother's housecoat, but it was alsa simllar to nne of the victims mother's
sweaters.)

6. A couple of poar quality footorints ware found near the bodies in the mud, ane of
which was a tennis shoe; (The print was not similar to any found or compared to the
convicted teens),

7. No blood atall wes found &t the scene. [.uminasl tesfing done at the crime scans
some two weeks after the discovery of the bodies revealed the presence of possible
blood at the crime scene In, and on, the ditch bank where the bodies were lald by
the police after they wara removed from the water. Blood sesped fram the bodies
unte the soll whiere the bodies ware laid, Luminal testing is nat admissible In Court
because It Is not sclentifically reliable; {The medical examiner testified at the
Echals/Baldwin trial that it would be impossible for the Injuries that were Inflicted on
thosa boys to be inflicted without leaving blood at the scene.) No fallow Up bigod
lest was performed.

Update: Brent Turvey's analysis reveals that most el the boys were kiled
efsewhere and that they were dumped at the site whare the bodias were recoversd.
This explains the lack of blood found at the crime scene. See Brent Turvey's profile.

8. Nc weapons ware found at the scane and rio artifacts or anything indicating
Satanic Activity were present.

Update: Brent Turvey's invastigation and profile revaals that thera are no Indlcators
of Satanic activity whatsoever. See Srent Turvey's profile.

C. Police misconceptions regarding crime scene / bodies

1. The Autopsy reports took sama Hime to be produced, and betause there ware
zlmast no real clues, the police were ezger to get the repart,

2, MESCONCEPTION: The Autopsy reports revesled that the boys anuses were
difated which seemed ta Indicate that they had been sodomized, when in fact the
dilation was a natural result of the bodies being in the water. Bruising and abrasions
of the boys mouths and ears were Interpreted by the police 35 forced oral sex when
other explanations were just as plausible.

FACT: The medical examiner testified that there was NO trauma to the boys
anuses, something that would virtually have to be present durlng a sexual assault,
especially on & young child, No semean was found In any body cavity of any of the
hoys at the time of the autopsies.

3. MISCONCEPTION: The police assumed that the time of death had 1o be
between 6:30 p.m. on May 5, 1953, the [ast time the boys were seen alive, and
about 8:30 p.m. when a massive search of the crime scene beqan,

FACT: Bafore tha Misskelley Trial In Corning, the medizal examiner told Misskellay's
atrorneys that the time of death was impossibie to determine because the corarer
had done such a poor job In supplying the necessary data. At the Echals/Baldwin
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trial In Jonesbaro, the medical examiner testified that he had done further research
and now placed the time of death at between 1:00 and 5:00 a.m. on May 6th,
1993,

Update: See time of death information above.
D. DPamien Echols tunnel vision / Satanic Panic

1. The day after the bodies were discovered, the police questionad Damien Echals
about the murders. Damien, although highly pressured, professed his innocence
and refused to confess to the murders. He even voluntarily gave hair and blood
sampies o police for comparlsons,

2. Paolice felt that Damien had to be responsible for this erime because of the
foilowing:

a. Damien Echals had & bad reputation as belnag strange and inte the
occult/Satanism/devil worshipping, The Criftenden County Juvenile Officer, Jerry
Driver, was convinced that Damilen was inveived in the murders based on his past
experiences with Damien, Darmien told Driver a year before the murders that a cult
would be forming In the area and Driver has heard that Damien liked to drink blovd.
Driver contacted the W. Memphls Police and told them of his belief.

h. The West Memphis Police began receiving tips and suagestions from concerned
citizens, psychics and other police organizations, because of the "America Most
Wanted" segmenit that was aired, that If the bodles were sexually mutilated then it
was the work of "Satanists” or "Devll Worshippers." There were rumors af Devit
Worshippers being in Robin Hood Woods even hefors the murders.

¢. Police, faced with no real clues, and under intense pressure to solve the crime,
had a de=p rooted belief that Damien was responsible, and being unable to get
Damien to confess, began rounding up anyone and everyane who knew Damien
Echols.

d. Damien, beindg foalich, and loving the attention the police and othars in Wast
Memphis were giving him, did not deny invalvement to his friends. In fact, some
kids testifiad that he bragoed about the killings, and took credit for same,

in my opinion, Damlen, wha by Arkansas standards was really weird In relation to . !
his dress and attitudes, and who would never bethe class president orthe =
quarterback of the foutball team, and who was suffering desperately for attention,

liked his newfound status as a eelebrity. 1 don't think Bamien ever stopped and

considered that hie might be arrested based on his own mouth, and there was really

ne way he could have anticlpated Vicky Hutchesaon or Jessie's false confession,

NOTE: Two things make me belleve this. First, Damien voluntarily gave halr and
blood samples to police, not exactly the modus operand| of a guilty person,
espedially not somesone as intelligent as Damian,

Secondly, Damien told Ron Lax thet he wasn't mad at Jessie for giving the false
statement 1o police, hecause he knew Jessie was slow; and he told Ron that if the
cops were 25 hard on Jessie as they were on him, there was no way Jessie could
have withstood the pressure,

E. The Vicky Hutcheson connection

3. Background: Vicky Hutchesor had only lived |n West Memphis 2 short tme at the
time of the murders, Her san Aaron, was a playmats ta the boys who were
murderad, Vicky previcusly lived in Northwest Ari@nsas and basically fied to West
Memphis because she had outstanding warrants for her amest for hot checks In NW
Arkansas. Sha |eft her employer In Fayetteville, a lawyet, with the impression that
he had a braln tumor and was tarminally .

b. On the day the bodies were discovarad, May &, 1993, Vicky was in the Marion
Police Department for the purpose of taking a polygraph test becauss some money
had come up missing from the cash register at her place of employment In West
Mamphis. She toak Aarcn with her, and this angered the Ufficer who was to conduct
her polygraph exam, Don Bray. Don Bray struck ap a cenvarsation with Aaron, and
Aaron told lim thot he knew where the missing boys were at “The playhouse." Bray
called the WMPD to tell them what Aaron had safd, and he was told that the bodies
had been found near where Aaran had ind|cated. (Aaren would later kake Police to
the scene where the playhouss was supposed to be and no playhouss was found).

¢. Azron would lster tell police that he witnessed the murders suipp'nsedly seeing
men In the woods al| dressed up and speaking Spanish, |.e. Devil Worshippers. Sach
story was dramatically differant than the previaus verslon and Aaran finailly tald
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police that Mark Byzrs was there and kiiled the boys.

IMPORTANT NOTE: Aaron never Identified any of tha convicted teens untll after
Jessie’s canfession, and could not Identify Damien or Jason In a photo llneup. This
despite knowing Jessie very wall because Jessie baby-sat for him, Prosecutors knew
they couldn't use this evidence because Aaron had changed his stary so often and
they knew witnesses placed Aaron far from the crime scene at the time of the
raurders,

A press leak by a polics officer led to a news story about Aaron witnessing the
murders and created a medla frenzy that severely hampered the three defendants
ablilty to receive a falr trial. In our-opinion, Aaron did In fact play In the woods with
the victims probably on several oteasions, but he was definitely not in the woods on
the date of the murders, In an effort to try to halp, and at the suggestion of his
mather, Aaron probably thinks he was there or dreamed he was. None of his
statemnents accurately reflect facks of the crime scena.

d. Vicky definitely wanted the reward maney having stated so publicly before and
after the trials. Argund June 1, 1993, Vicky was told by the WMPD that they could
help her with her legal problems If she would help them get Damlen. She agreed to
3 "wira" of her home and she tried to get Damien ta her house to et Information
out of him, She asked Jessle Misskelley te introdiice her to Damien, Jessie's reply
was, "1 know whe he is and 1 can take you to his house." Jessie, who always tries to
help, because that Is his niture, obiiged and introduced her to Bamlen, although ha
didn®t know him.

e, Vicky finally got Damilen over to her house but he say= nothing abourt the
murders on the "wire," The palice deny that they have any tapes of the surveillance
that are audible. Vicky told us aftar the trials were over that she had listened to the
tapes herself at the WMPD, and that they were quits audible.

f. Vicky tsils police on June 2, 1993 that two weeks after the murders she, Damien
and Jessia went to an “Esbat” In Turrell, AR, and that Damien drove themn thers,
This coupleil with the statement of Willlam Winfrad Jones, who told police that he
had everheard Damien, in a drunken stupor brag about killing and raping the kids,
lzd paolice to cantar their investigation as satanic homicides and un June 3, 1993,
police picked up Jessle Misskelley for questicning.

NOTE: Willlam Winfred Jones recanted his statement during the trial of Jessie
Misskellay just hours before he was to testify, saying that he made the stary up and
that he had only heard that Damien had dane it.

4. Vicky was never able to lead police to the "Esbat" site or |dentify anybody else
who was present at same.

h. Vicky Hutcheson admitted after the trisls were completed that she was so drunk
the night of the so called “Esbat” that she woka up In har front yard and could have
dreamed the whele "Esbat" thing.

F. False Confession

Eackground: Jessie Misskelley, Ir, was just four years old when his mother
abandened him, leaving him and his seversly retarded brother In the care of lessle
&r. According to Jessio's family, Jessle's brother was later institutionalized and
Jessie Ir. was diagnosed himsell as belng retarded. Doctar's recammended that
Jessle Ir. receive spacial education and family counseling, but this was never done.
Tasts conducted at our request after his arrest Indicated that Jessle Misskellay, Ir.
was pparating av
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the level of a five year old child. His reading level was severely retarded, and his
overall IQ was In the range af 72, which Indicates that he Is barderline mantally
retarded

T

— 8. Our resedrch Indicated that due to his mental handicap, Jessie was not able to
understand any aspect of his "Miranda Rights,” which reguire a sixth grade reading
level to understand.

oz souse o |

b. Jessie Misskelley, approximately two weeks after the murders, was hanging out

with some filends near Bojangles Restaurant in West Memphis. A "bum® asked him

and his friends to accompany him to his “Fort" and drink beer. Jessle and his friends

£ e refused and called police thinking that this "bum® might be the killer of the three

M hoys. The "hum" was plcked up and questioned but released. Ha was the son of a
Crittenden County Sheriff's deputy. Jessie and his filends were tald by Police that i
they found the killer that they would gef the reward money.

c. On June 3rd, 1993, police acting on the information from Vicky Hutcheson, re:
the Eshat, picked Up Jessle Misskelley, Jr. for questioning, He was taken to the
police station at about 9:30 a.m., after Officer Allen told Jessle Sr. that they wanted
r to talk to Jessie Jt. ahout Damien. Allen told Jessla Sr. and Jim Mchease that Jessie
- would get the reward money IF he halped in the Investigation. In raspense ta police

voskirad by questioning, Jessle said that be had heard that Damisn and 8 quy named Robert

FicRInaEm Burch had killed the boys. Jessle told pollce that he wes roofing with Ricky Deese
the day of the murders. He deniad bsing at Turrell, AR for a devil-worshippers'
meeting with Vicky and Damien, telling police that he had never aven heen to
Turrell at all.

NOTE: Jessie was questioned by police despite the fact that bnder Arkansas law he
could anly be questioned If his parents consented to @ waiver of his Miranda rights
In writing, since he was only 17 years. of age.

d. Police believing that he was lylng asked Jassie If he would submit to a palygraph
test, Jessie, not knowing what a polyaraph test was, told police that he would take
thie test, Officer Allen took Jessie 1o get his father's written permission for the
polygraph test, but still did not discuss Jessie’s Miranda Rights, or their waiver in
wiriting. Instead, when they found Jessie Sr. another discussion was had about
Jessie receiving the reward money, If he helped find the killer.

e, Jessie was administered the polygraph at about noan. Jessie was asked a serles
of ten guestions. One of the questions was 'do you do drugs,” which Jessiz
answered "NO" Thers Were several very deneric questions about the murders. Ezch
time Jessle stated that he knew nothing about the murders, After the test was
complated, Jessle was told by Officer Durham that he was "lylng his ass off." Jessle
admitted that he had lled about the drug guestion, but officer Durham =aid that he
was lying about the murders, and even told Jessie that he khew he was lying
because "Jessle's brain was telling him $0."

NOTE: Experts teil us that when & person of limitad int2ilect and who Is vary
suggestibie is tolg that they have flunked a polygraph tast, they will often confess
falsely as thelr parcepticn of reality s changed and they see It as thell enly chance
to avold getting nto trouble and tha only way they can pleasa thelr interragators,
and ultimataly leave the pressure of the interrogation.

f. Jecsie was then Int2rrogatad for two hours during which time Be vahamantly
denied any role in the murdérs. He was denied the right to talk to his father, and
was grilled repeatzdly by Gitchell and Rklge. Finally, Gfficer Gitchell showed lessle a
plcture of one of the boys bodles which terribly frigphtened lassie. Then Gitchell
played a tape ta Jessie using Aaroh's volce which sa/d "Nokody knows what
happened but me.” This frigktsned Jessle sven mora

q. Then Gitchell showed Jessie a diagram. The diagram contained a circle with three
dats In It which represented Damien, Jason and Jessis. Gltchell then drew dozens of
dots on the autside of the clicle, and asked lessie if he wanted to be on the outside
with the police ar on the inside with Damien and Jessle. This all frightened Jessie
and he told Glichell and Ridge he wanted out.
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Al this finally broke Jessie's will, and his mind told him that the anly way aut was to
tell them what they wanted to hear, After rehearsing the scsnario, over and over
again, he finally told them that e had seen Damlen and Jasan rape and murder the
boys. He unwittingly tald police 2naugh to cause himsalf to be an accomplice.
Ihstead of allowing him ta go home as palice promised, he was locked up, The
Interrogation itself lastad almost tweiva hours, but only about: twenty minutes of
audio tape exist regarding the confession. Immedigtaly after the confession, when
Jessie realized he wasn't golng heme, he recanted the entire conlession, but it was
toa fatz,

NOTE: As part of an experiment, Dr. Wilkins and mysalf were able to get Jessls to
confess to committing a robbery thak never occurrad. This was ruled inadmissible
by the Court, and the jury never knew this. T oftan bragged that I could get Jessie
to confass to killing JFK, althaugh he wasn't even born in 1963. T am still convinced
I could get him to confess to almost anything.

NOTE #2: Police fearing our defense of false confession, searched faverishly for 3
way to corroborate Jessle's story. They questionzsd a friend of Jessie's named Buddy
Lucas, Lucas told Officars Durham and Ridge that Jessie confessed 19 him that he
had witnessed the murders the day aftsr the murders occurrad. Lucas told the
officers thet he and an Uncle went to Jessie's on the day of the murders and took
the Misskelleys some BBQ chicken. According to Lucas, Jessie Jr, wasn't thers, but
Jessia Sr. told him that Jessie had want ta W Memphis w/ same teenagers. Lucas
then told the officers that the next day, he went over to Jessie's house and that he
and Jessle got their hair cut by Steghanle Dollar. After the hair cuts, Jessia told
Buddy everything, Jessle even gave Buddy the shoes he was wearing when the
boys were killad which Buddy readily handed over to police.

Suddenly, the West Memphis police had the techhology to video tape an
Interrogation, something they couldn't do with Jessie on June 3, 1993. [ want to the
Policz Department and watched the video of Budily's statement. The statement
seemed strange to me, a poor attempt by Mr. Lucas ta give the police something ta
corTobarate Jessie's statement. After the tape was over, Officer Ridge readily
sdmitted to me that as soon as Buddy finished his statement, he refused to take a
polygraph exam to confirm same, end even recanted evarything he said on the
t2pe. T went to Jessie Sr.'s and asked him abaut the chicken. He said he Buddy and
his uncle never brought him any chicken. Buddy's uncie also denled delivering any
chicken, and Stephanie Dollar =ald she did not cut Buddy's halr on May 6, 1393

Ron Lax tracked down Buddy, and he and I took a statemant from Buddy, on video
tape. Buddy sald the police threatened him and tald him he would go to jall if he
didn't tell them 2bout Jessiz deing the murdears. Buddy said he mage up the story t
ke=p from going to jail and thet he "hated to kave to lis on Jessle” but fie wae
scared of the cops, Buddy sald Jessie had given him some tennls shoes lang hefore
the murders aver took place, and the shoes that he gave police were not even the
ones Jessie had Inanad him, When the police took the shoes, they gave Buddy &
brand new pair of boots, Buddy told Ron and mysalf that ke was glad to tell us the
real story.

Whien I asked Jessie about Buddy, he sald that hs hadn't seen Buddy in a long tima,
and that Buddy was real dumb. Jessie said Buddy was in "special aducation” in
school. If Jessie thought he was slow then you can Imagine how slow he really was.
We erranged for Buddy to be represented by an attorney, and he was not hassled
by the policz anymore. When prosecutors leamen of his recantation, they did not
call him to testify, In a very difficult decislon, Greg and I chose not to put Buddy on
the stand at tral because he was so nervous and wouldn't have made a good
witness. Furthsr, the jury might have balieved Buddy's statement to palice, which
the prosecution surely would have used Lo impeach him, and this might have been
all the jury needed to convict Jessie of Capital Murder something that could have
cast him his life,

In addition, Buddy's testimony miglit be canstrued by tha appellate caurt as
corroboration, something we have submitted all along they did not have. In
hindsight, I.stlll think we made the right decision in not using Buddy at trial.
G, Facts of Jessie’s confession do not match facts of crime scene

1. Jessia says boys skipped school May 5, 1993,

FACT: Boys were in school all day, so was Jason Baldwin.

2, Jassie says boys were Killed at noon on May 5, 1433,

FACT: Boys were in school until 3:00 p.m., and were |ast seen alive at ahout 6;30
p.m. ME says time of death was 1:00 TO 5:00 a.m. on May 6th, 1993, Jessie
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worked with Ricky Daese until about 12:30 p.m,
3. Jessie says boys were raped (sodomized).

FACT: Madical examiner says no brauma to boys anuses, something that would L
have been there if they were raped.

4. Jessle says Jason castrated Christopher Byers with a single swing of a knife,

FACT: Madical examiner says that the penis of Byers was method|cally skinned by
someone with extensive knowledge of anatomy end the process would have taken
same time to complete even under labaratory conditions.

Update: The mutifation was not skiliful or meticulous as Peretii sald. It was crudely
done, This is still quite Inconsfstent with Misskelley's confession,

5. Jessia says that the boys were tied up with 2 brown rope.
FACT: The boys were bound with their own shoestrings.
6. Jessle says the boys were beaten with a big ol' stick and cut with a knife.

FACT: No blood was found st the scene, and ME says those Injuries could not be
inflicted with out 2 great deal of blood loss, (This leads on to belfeve that the boys
were killed elsewhere and thelr bodies dumped in the greek. This seems to be
corroborated by the fact that search teams were combing the woods that night
walked all over the spot where the bodies were recovered.)

Uipdate: Brent Turvey's Frofile of the case corroborates our belief that the boys
were killed efsewhers,

7. Jessie says Damien choked one of the boys with a big ol stick.

FACT: Madical Examiner says none of the boys had choking or strangulation
Injuries.

These are Just a few of the most dbWous Inconsistencles.
G. What the experts tell us

1, The defense retainad the sarvices of twa well knawn experts who are recognized
as being the taps In their field, Dr. Richard Ofshe and Mr, Warren Holmes,

2. Backgrotnd on retention of experts:
. Richard Ofshe:

1. Ron Lax told us about Dr. Richard Ofshe. An attorney friend of Ron's In California
recommanded Ofshe ta Ron for use In Damien's trlal as an expert on Lhe oceult
Ofshe won 3 Pulitzer Prize for his work on the Synanon Cult In Callfornia. Ofshe has
a second area of expertise, False Confessions, and Ron suggested we talk to Dr,
Ofshe. I called Ofshe. at the University of Callformia in 8erkeley, and explained that
[ thought Jessie had falsely confessed ta the homicldes. I further explained that [
was appointed by the Court-and had no maney with which to pay hiin, This did not
deter Ofshe. He asked about evidence against Jessie, Independent of the
confessian, and 1 Infermed him there was none. He agreed to ook ovar the
transcript of the confession, which I Fed-Exed him that day.

Aboult a week fater, Ofshe phoned me and Informed e that Jessie's confession was
the warst false confession that he had ever seen, and that he felt Jessle was
innocent. Ofshe's testimony is part of the trial transcript and is vary, vary
compelling evidence af Jessie's innocence. Ofshe, like myself is absolutaly
convinced of Jessie's lnnacence.

Fram almost the beainning, 1 wanted to have the polygraph test Jessie had on June
3, 1993, looked over by another expert. The lawyer in me was hesitant though
vecause | was afraid 1 might not (ke the results of the Independent analysis. When
1 discussed thig with Dr. Ofshe, he tald mie, "Don't ke atrald, Dan, your client &
innocent.” That's when 1 called Warren Holmes in Miami.

b, Warren Holmes
1. 1 read about Warran Holmas in a Florida case I was researching regarding

recordation of interrogations. The case cited Mr. Holmes tremsndous experience in
the area of polygraphs which includes the fallowing:
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a. Mr. Holmes s a cansultant to the FBI, ths Texas Rangeis, the Royal Mount=d
Canadian Police.

b. Mr. Holmes conducted polygraph examinatians in the assassination of JFK and
Martin Luther King, Jr. as well 25 Watsrgate.

C. Mr, Holmes worked en the Willlam Kennedy Smith case, the Bostan Stranglar
case, and the Hamptan Case fram Loulsiana.

d. He has aver 39 years experience as a homicide detective and a polyaragh
examiner,

2. When 1 called Mr, Holraes, I explained to Kim that I had been appainted to
represent an indigent kid in Arkansas charged with killing three bays. I explained ko
him that I had no money to pay him, but that I rezlly needed his help because I falt
miy client was innocent. Mr. Holmes finally agreed to look over the polygraph charts
from Jessta's polyaraph.

3. Abaut a week later, Mr, Holmes phaned me and told me that Jessie had only
showed signs of deceptlon on ane quastion, The drug question, Jessle had passed
all the questions about the homliddss, showing ho signs of deception on the charts.
It was clear that Officer Durham had lied to Jess'e, and that Jessie had falsaly
confessed In large part because he thought the W. Memphis poiice had this machine
that was t&lling him "his brain was lying to them." This altered Jessle dim view of
reality, and he falt that the enly way he could get away from his Interrogators was
to tell them what they wanted to hear.

4. Mr. Holmes has nevar been paid for help in our case. The State OF Arkansus
reimbursed him the two thousand dollars or-so of his persorial funds spent flylng to
Arksnsas to testify.

5, Dr. Ofshe did recelva some relmbursenient of his travel expenses. This did nat
even come close to reimbursing him for all his expenses.

H. What the jury was not allowed to hear

1. Testimeny of Dr, Richard Ofshe

&. The Trial judge refused to allow Dr, Ofshe ko give all of his opinlons with regard
to Jessie's case, In short, he was not allowed to tell the Jury that, in his opinion,
Jessie's confession was 3 product of police coerdon. This despite Dr. Ofshe being
allowed to testify to the same issue In Courts around the Country. We mades a
proffer of what his anticipated testimony would have been, so the Arkansas
Supreme Court will be able te detzrming its adnissibility on appeal. Click here 1o
read Dr. Ofshe's testimony,

2. Testlmeny of Warren Holmes

a. The trial judge refused to allow Mr. Holtmes te testify in front of the Jury about

the results of Jessie’s polyuraph exam, stating that It was inadmissible. The Court
did permit him to testify abouk

R PREV 1 2 3 4 NEXT

Wisthar you oppoxe tha derth penaily or'nbe, 1 resiiy ons eanvUNead USEY tiepre uat gullty af anyining...
-Steve Ezrfa

hitpyvww.wmi.ore/live/casei ntraduction/eunnngis dan nhnnaora=9 = A emnon

ADD 4456



WM3.org - Case Synopsis by Dan Stidham Page | ot 4

PREV 1 2@4 NEXT
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IR (oterrogstion techniques n general which he did, Click here to read Warren Holmes'

“This testimony was cricial to an acqulttal for Jessie.

This testimony of both these experts was absolutely crucial to Jessie's defense.
When the Judge refused to allow the jury to hear this, It crippled our defense
severdy. T am convincad that had the juty heard this testimony, Jessie would have
been acquitted,

My belief is based on the following:

% 1, After both Holmas and Ofshe tastifiad at trial, mambers of tha media, and ather
spectators told Greg and 1that they falr we had wan the case because thelr
testimany was so compelling. Just think what their reaction might have been had
they lknown everything,

SHYEREARCH: 2, We leamned, after the trial, that the first vote the jury took in the jury room was

B far conviction, 4 for acquittal. Despite the limitatlon the Court imposed an us, we

were gble to convince 4 jurors ha was innacent. We only needed one strong willed
jurnr far a hung-jury and ultimate mistrial, which would have been the next best

"“"’I:";I“’ thing to an acquittal. The 8 wore down the 4, however, and they rsached a

SoERaeom compromise verdict. Although, we didn't get an acquittal, we were fortunate enough
tw avoid a capltal murder conviction, and thus the death penalty.

We are still hopeful on' appesl.
Updater Res Criminal Profiling of the Case

1, Before the trial In 1994, I attempied to retain & criminal profiler for this casa,
Limited funds made this quest impossible. Before the trisl ] came across o
nawspaper article describing how polica investigators wers using profile Infarmation
received from the FBI There was nothing in the discovery we recelved from the
police and prosecurors that suggested anything about a profile from the FBI I was
very Interesied in this profite information for two reasons, First, I wanted (o see If it
fit my client at all, Secondiy, 1 wanled to see if it might fead me to the real killer(s).
When I asked Inspectar Gary Gitched! for this imformation, he denied ever raceiving
anything from the FBI. After Misskelfey's trial I iearned that Gitcheil had lied to me
and that the FBI did ln fact provide an Inltiai profile of the killer in the form of a
guestionare that palfce officers vsed fa canvass the neighhochoad Where the boys
{ived znd their bodfes were found. The aist of the profile was that the police shouid
be fooking for 3 Vietnam veteran because the wounds to the victim Byers were
simifar to wounds mfiicted on Amerlcan persanel doring the Vietoam War, This
proflle weas given Lo the WMPD despite the fact thal the FBI never visited the crime
scene of examined the autopsies. In addltion, this FBI profile seemed to bie based
entlreiy upan statlstical data and mot on crime scene data or victimoiogy.

2. When I contacted the BBX In 1994 wask them aboul the profile, they gave me
the run around and sald that they had closed thelr flfe slhce the WMPD had made
arrests within a few weeks of the homicides. When T advised them that 1 felt a seral
killar might e responsible far this crima and that he was still on the lnose, they
assured me thal an agent would contact me regarding same. The agent never did
and when I fiew to Washingtor In September of 1994 with my case flie, the FBI
refused to meet with me, agaln asseving me that an agent would contact me. None
dald.

3, After seyeral attempts Lo oblain the services of a criminal profiler, I finally met
with success after belng referred (o Brent Turvey by Kathy Bakken of the WM3
Support Fund group. Turvey agreed ta look at the case in 1997 on a pro bono hasis
since he was interviewing far a 100 with the Arkapsas Criminal Justice Insituie and
wanted to avoid the possibility of any appearance of bias on his parl. Turvey turmed
down the Arkansas pesition fn pari because fie was lofd e could only assist faw
enfarcement and never the dafenss If he took the fob.

J.Erenl Turvey's profile has been invalvatle to me ard other members of the
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defensa team In assisting us in obtaining new evidence and investigative direction.
I JESSIE MISSKELLEY'S SO-CALLED SECOND CONFESSION

T'am often asked to explein the events surmounding my chent’s so-calfed vecond
Confession. Many people look ta this "second” confasslon as a way of dismissing the
clalms by the defense that Misskalley statements were the product of coercion by
police and theraby false. These people do not know the factusl basis surrounding
Misskalley's post trisl statements. In 1994, after Misskellsy’s conviction and
immediately prior to the Echols/Baidwin trial in Jonesboro, proseculors were
desperate for Misskelley’s testimony against his co-defendants. They did nat fes!
that they could oblaln convictions agalnst Echols and Baldwin without Misskeiley's
assistance. This is evident for tha scene in “Paradise Lost" whers prosecutors are
explalning to the victims® famiiles that the chances were slim without Misskellay’s
testimony and cooperation. I prepared a Motion to Dismiss based upon Prosecutorial
Misconduct for Echols and Baldwin's atterneys which was denfed by the trial Court.
In this mation, the factual besis surrounding Misskalley's zecond confession i lald
out. It fs pubilic record and set forth herein In its entirety:

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF CRAIGHEAD COUNTY, ARKANSAS
WESTERN DISTRICT
CRIMINAL DIVISION

STATE OF ARKANSAS  PLAINTIFF
Vs. Mo.:CR93
DAMIEN WAYNE ECHOLS and CHARLES JASON BALDWIN

DEFENDANTS MOTION

Cames now the Defendants, by and through thelr Court Appaintad Attomeys, and
feir thelr Mation, hereby state and allege as follows: '

1. That & CoDafendant, Jessie Lloyd Misskelley, Jr,, was cunvicted on February 4,
1894, of the offenses of one (1) count of First Degree Murder and two (2) counts of
Secend Degres Murder and was sentenced by the Court to Iife Imprisonment on the
First Degree Murder charge and twenty (20) years imprisanment on each count of
Second Degrea Murder to run consecotively. On February 4, 1994, the Court and
the Frosecution was Informed by counsel for Jaseie Lioyd Misskelley. Jr. that saltl
sentences were golng to be appealed to the Arkanses Supreme Court. That the
Court and the Prosecition was further informed by defense counsel that Jessfe Lioyd
Misskelley, Ir. had no intention of testifying against his cadefendants Damien Wayne
Echols and Charles Jasan Baldwin.

2. That Damien Wayne Echols and Charlas Jason Baldwin are each charged with
three (3) counts of Capltal Murder and their trial Is set to start in Craighead County
on Tuesday, Feliruary 22, 1994,

3. That the Prosecuting Attorney, his Deputies, the Clay Courity; Arkansas Sherifi's
Department and the Craighead County, Arkansas Sheriff's Deparsment have all
known that Daniel 7. Stidhem and Gregory L. Crow were the duly appainted
attorneys for Jessle Lioyd Misskellay, Ir. since June, 1993,

4. That on February 4, 1984, follewing sentencing of the Gefendant, Jessie Lioyd
Misskelley, Jr., as set forth abuve, officers of the Clay County, Arkansas Sheriff's
Office transported Jessie Uoyd Misskelley, Jr. ta the Arkansss Departrment of
Carrections Diagnostic Unit in Pine Biuff, Arkansas, That during transport of Jessia
Lioyd Misskelley, Jr. the officers, In violation of Jessie Lloyd Misskelley, Ir.'s Sixth
Amendment right ta counsel and his Filth Amendment Right to Remain Silent,
elicitad a statement from the Defendant. .

5. That the actions of the Clay County Sheriff's Departmgnt officers on February 4,
1994, were a willfu| sttempt te make Irproper contact with the Defendant; Jessie
Uoyd Misskelley, Ir., without the knowledge and consent of his Caurt appointed
attorneys, and thet said conduct on the part of the officers is imputed to the
Prosecuting Attorney whether the Prosecuting Attarney had direct knowledge of sald
attions or not,

6. This impropriety represents a conscious, calculated and ongoing sttempt by the
Prosecution to interfere with the attorney/cllent relationship between Jessiz Lioyd

Misskelley, Jr. and his Courtappolntad attorneys and to circumvent Jessle Liayd
Misskelley, Ir's, Fifth and Sixth Amendment rights as guaranteed him by the U.5.

005943
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Constitution,

7. That an Tuesday, February 8, 1994, and again on Tuesday, Febiruary 15, 1994,

the Defendant, lessle Lioyd Misskelley, Ir's court appointed attomey, Danlel T,

Stidham, visited with the Defeadant, Jessie Lioyd Misskelley, Jr., at the request of R=
the Prosecution.

8. That on Tuesday, February 15, 1954, Daniel T. Stidham, in persan, again,
notified the Prosecuting Attorney's Office that Jessle Lloyd Misskelley, Jr, had no
desire to testify agalnst his codefendant's, Damien Wayne Echols and Charles Jason
Baldwin, and would not be testifying against sald codefendants.

9, That on Wednesday, February 16, 1984, Deputy Prosecuting Attorney John
Fogleman contacted the Defendant, Jessie Lloyd Misskelley, Jr.'s father, Jessie Lioyd
Misskelley, Sr., and requestad that he talk his son Into testifying against his
eodefendant’s in exchange for a forty (40) year sentence, Mr. Misskellay, Sr.; again,
informed the Prosecution that Jessie Lloyd Misskelley, Jr. would not be testifying
against his codefendants In thelr upcoming trial in Craighead County,

10. That also on Wadnesday, February 16, 1994, the Prosecuting Attorney, Brant
Davig, requested permission from Jessie Lioyd Misskelley, Ir.'s attarneys to
intarview Jessle Lioyd Misskalley, Jr. Sald permission was not granted,

11, Further, on Wednesday, February 16, 1894, the Prosecution obtained an ex
parte Order from the Court to kransport Jessie Lloyd Misskelley, Jr. to Craighead
County to testlfy against his codefendants. This Order was obtained without the
krowledge and consent of the Defendant, Jessie Lloyd Misskellay, Ir, and his
attorneys despite repeated statements to the Prosecution that Jessie Lloyd
Misskelley, Ir. would not be testifying against his codefendants, The fact that Jessie
Lioyd Misskelley, Jr. was being transported te Creighead County to testify as a
witness was cammunicated to the Medla and a copy of the Order transporting him
was even shown oh television. To this date, Jessie Lloyd Misskelly, Ir's attorneys
have yet to see said Order.

12, That at approximately 6:15 p.m. on Thursday, February, 17, 1984, the

attomeys for Jessie Lloyd Misskelley, Jr. received a phene call fram C. Joseph

Calvin, Deputy Prosecuting Attormey for Clay County, Arkansas who stated that

Jessle Lloyd Misskallay, Jr. was prasant in his office and deslred to make a

statament. Mr. Calvin was Informad by both of Jessis Lloyd Misskalley's attomeys

that he was not to take any statement from thelr client, Jessie. -

13, That the CaDefendant, Jessle Linyd Misskelley, Ir. was transported to Rector,
Arkansas on February 17, 1994, by a member of the Craighead County Sheriff's
Office. That during transport of Jessie Lloyd Misskelley, Ir. the officer; In violation of
Jessie Lloyd Misskelley, Ir.'s Sixth Amendrment right to counsel and his Filth
Amendmerit Right to Remaln Silent, elicited statements from the Defendant and
encouraged Jessle Lioyd Misskelley ta testify against his Co Defendants, Said officer
even promised to bring Jessie Lloyd's gitlfriend to the Jail to visit him.

14, That the actions of the Cralghzad Couiity Sheriff's Deparimant officar on
February 17, 1994, were a wiliful attempt t make Improper contact with the
Defendant, Jessie Lloyd Misskelley, Jr., without the knowledge and consent of his
Court appolnted attorneys, and that sald conduct on the part of the officers s
imputed to the Prasecuting Attorniy whether the Prosecuting Attorney hiad direct
knowledge of sald actions or not.

15. This impropriety represents a conscious, calculated and ongoing attempt by the
Prosecution to interfere with the attorney/dient relationship between Jessia Linyd
Misskelley, Jr. and his Courtappalnted attormeys and te clrcumvent Jessie Lioyd
Misskelley, Ji's. Fifth and Sixth Amendment riahts as guarantzed him by the U.S.
Canstitution,

16, That Danlgl T. Stidham and Gregory L. Crow srrived In Rector, Arkansas at
approximatsly 7:00 p.m. and discoverad that Prosecuting Attarney Brent Davis was
also present at the office of Joe Calvin and that prosecutors had already
communicated with their client without their knowledge and consent. That said
attorneys were allowed to communicate with their cllent, Jessie Lioyd Misskelley,
Jr., for only spproximately fifteen minutes when Prosecutors Davis and Caivin burst
mtu the conferance room and demanded to take a statement from Jessiz Loy
Misskelley, Jr, Stidham and Crow objected to the interference and informed
prasecutors that they wished to visit with their dlient uninterrupted, Prosecutors
thien expressed thelr fear, in the presence of Jessie Lloyd Misskelley, Jr,, that
Defense Attorneys would convince Jessie Lioyd Misskalley, Ir. to decline to make a
statement to them. Jessie Lloyd Misskelley, Jr. then stood up and announced that =
he wished to make a statement In spite of the advise and counsel of his attorneys,
and exited the conference reom and refused to talk to his attorneys further,
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17. That the Honorable Tudge David Burnett was telephoned at which time Mr.
Stidham vilced his objections to his cllent baing present in the prasecuters office i
the first place, that his presence st the prosecutor’s office was & violation of his
client’s Constitutional rights, that Mr, Misskelley had reguested psychiatric eare o5
Tuesday, February 15, 1994, that he questioned Jessia Lioyd Misskalley, Ir's current
mental competancy and requested a mental evaluation, and that lessie Lioyd
Misskelley, Ir. had Informed him on Tuesday, Fabruary 15, 1984 that he did not
wish ta tastify against his codefendant's. The Court denled the objections and
request for a mental evaluation by Mr. Stidham and perinitted the Prosectition to
affer use Immunity to Jessie Lioyd Misskelley, Jr. and take his statement over sald
abjections.

18, After taking his statement, the Prosecutian transparted Jessie Lloyd Misskelley,
Jr. ko the Clay County Detention Canter. Jessie Lloyd Misskelley, Sr. traveled to Clay
County to talk to his san but wes denled access to his son by Ciay County Officlals.

18. That the Prosecution, the Court and attorneys for Damien Wayne Echols and
Jason Baldwin were notified on February 18, 1994, that the sttorneys far Jassie
Lloyd Misskelley were *outraged” at the conduct of the prosecution and that the
Prosecution was to have no further contact with the Defendant, Jessie Lioyd
Misskelley, as reflected in Defendants Exhibit "A" attached hereto.

20. That Prosecutors, again, visited with Jassie Lioyd Misskelley, Ir. without the
knowledge and consent of his atomneys on Friday, February 18, 1594, Saturday,
February 19, 1994 and on Sunday, February 20, 1994 in direct violation of his Fifth
&nd Sixth Amendment Rights-as guarenteed him by the U.S. Constitution.

21. That the abovementioned conduct and actions of the Prosecution-are a willful
ant deliberate attempt to make improper contact with the Defendant, Jessie Lioyd
Misakelley, Jr., and sald actions and conduct are a consdous and calculated attempt
to drcumvent the Fifth and Sixth Amendment rights of the Defendant, Jessie Lioyd
Misskelley, Jr, Further, sald actions and canduct were a caleulated and deliberate
attampt to Interfere with the attomney/client relstionship betwesn Jessie Uoyd
Misskelley, Ir, and his Court appolinted attormays.

22, Arkansas Law does not permit the prosecutor to call 3 codefendant as a wikness
against other codefendants when he has knowledge that the codefendant would be
advised to assert his Fifth Amendment privilage against self incrimination. Here
counsel for Jessle Lloyd Misskelley, Jr. had repeatedly advised the Prosecution that
Jassie Lloyd Misskelley, Jr. would not be testifying against his co defendants, and as
such, the Piosecution cannot clelm that It was not aware of this fact,

23.That the sbovementioned canduct and actions of the Prosscution ara a willfil
and dellberate attempt to circumvent, and make a mockery of, the law as set forth
In paragraph twentytwo (22) abtve, and to violate the Constitutional Rights of the
defendants, Damien Wayne Echols and Charles Jason Baldwin, Said actions and
canduct on the part of the Prosecution are a conscious and calculated attempt to
circamvent the due precess rights of sald defendants, their right ta recelve a falr
and Impartial triat andthelr right to confront the witnesses agalnst them.

24. That sald conduct on the part of the Prosecution, regardless of whether or not
Jessle Liayd Misskelley, Jr. actually testifies against his codefendants, seriously
undermines and impairs, or could actuelly makes It impossible, for Damlen Wayne

Echols or Charles Jason Baldwin torecelve a fair and impartial Jury trial dua to the
fact that sald conduct on the part of the prosecution constitutes a"grandstand play"
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which has improperly drew attention to Jassie Lloyd Misskelley, Ir.'s alleged
confession which he submitted througholit the course of his trial was coercad.
Potential jurors will naw place emphasis on this improper "grandstand play™ by the
Prosecutor due to pretrial publicity.

25, That due to the miscondict of the Prosecutlon as set forth hereln, the
Defendant's requast the following relief:

8, dismissal of 2ll the charges against the defendants with prejudics;

b. suppression of any and all statements made by the Defendant, Jessie Lloyd
oD OR Al Misskelley, Ir., including any and all refersnces to sams;

c. that the prosecution ba Ordered to not have any contact whatsoever, diréctly or
indiractly, with any of the defendants herein, including Jessie Lloyd Misskelley, Ir.:

STEESERRGH: d. that the Frosecution be forbldden to call Jessle Misskelley, Jr. as a wimess, or

make any further reference o him being a witness, at tha trial of Damien Wayne
- Echols and Charles Jason Baldwin;

I_"

powered by

eoldmiine com

e. that the Prosecution be held in contempt of Court for it's alleged misconduct and
punished accordingly; and

f. that a Special Prosecutor be appolnted to Investicate the allegations set forth
herzin, preferably one from gutside the Second Judicial District.

WHEREFORE, premises considered the defendants pray that this Honorable Court
grant their Motlon and grant the rellef réquestad harzin, and for all other rellef to
which they may appear eptitled,

DAMIEN WAYNE ECHOLS, DEFENDANT

By:

Val Price, Bar#

Cowt appalnted Attornay
[agidress)

Janeshboro, Arkansas 72403
{501) 9326226

CHARLES JASON BALDWIN, DEFENDANT
By: .

George Wad|ey, Bar#

Court appointed Attorney

[addrass]

Joneshoro, Arkansas 72403

(S01) 9721100

BRIEF IN SUPRORT

The proesecutor's mleis identified in Foyd v. State, 278 Ark. 342, 845 5.W.2d 891,
593 (1983) wharein the Court stated: "...State's attorney acts In & guasijudicial
capacity and It is his duty to use fair, honorable, reasonable and [awful means to
seclre a conviction In a falr and Impartial trial."
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The prosecution overreached Its dutles In making improper contact with the
defendant, Jessie Liayd Misskelley, Jr., In violation of his Fifth and Sixth
Amendment rights. The Prosecution was Informed In clear and unequivocal terms
that Jessie Lloyd Misskelley, Ir. was nat golng to testify against his codefendants,
Namien Wayne Echols and Charles Jason Baldwin, thereby Invoking his Fifth
Amendment right ta remain sllent, i

The Prosecutian, having this knowledge, |s not even permiited to subpoena, or call
Jessie Lioyd Misskeliey, Jr. as a witness In the trial of his codefendants. In the case
of Foster v. State, 285 Ark. 363, 687 S.W. 2d 829 (1985), the Arkansas Supreme
Court stated that "The Court erred...when it permitted the prosecutor to call Pat
Hendrickson, the Wife of the deceased, who was charged with capital felony murder,
a5 a witness even though both the Court and the prosecutor knew that Mrs.
Handr:cksun would be advised to plead her fifth amendment privilege against salf
nerimination.”

Thus, the Prosecution committed misconduct in obtaining an ex parte Order fram
the Court maving the defendant, Jessie Lloyd Misskzlley, Ir., out of the Arkanszs
Department of Corractions to Craighead County to serve 2s a witness In the trial of
Damijen Wayne Echols and Charles Jason Baldwin, having been advised by Mr.
Stidham that Jessie Lloyd Misskelley, Jr. would not be testifying In the trial. The
Court In Foster, supra, and the Arkansas Court of Appeals In Sims v, State, 4 Ark.
App. 303, €31 S.W. 2d14 (1982) explained the raticnale of forbidding the
prosecution from calling a witnass to the stand that theprosecutor knows will Invoke
their fifth amendment privilege. The Arkansas Supreme Court in Foster, supra,
quoting language from Sims, supra and Douglas v. Alabama, 380 U.5. 415, 419, 85
5.Ct 1074 [1077], 13 LED.2d 934, 937 (1965) stated;

“The evil in the nontestimony of such a witness is not the mere calling of the
witness, but the obvlous Inferences drawn by a fury to a series of questions, to all
of which the witness refuses to answer on fifth amendment arounds. In that casa
the guestions themsalvas "may well be the equivalent in the jury's mind of
tzstimony.

"Such Improper questioning, not technically being testimony at all, deprives an
accuser! of his right to crossexamine the witnasses sgainst him as guaranteed by
tive Confrontation Clause of the Sixth Amendment to the Federal Constitution,"

In Namet v. United States, 373 10.S, 179, 83 S.C1. 1151, 10 L.Ed.2d 278 (1563) the
U.S. Supreme Court heid that “...the forbidden contduct Is the conssious and
fizgrant attempt to build Its case out of Inferences arising from use of the
testimonial privilege.” The Arkansas Supreme Court In Foster, supra, characterized
the prosecutions conduct as a "grandstand play,” with the prosecuter trylng to
"Build the state's case cut of inferences arising from [the witnesses] assertion of
her fifth amendment privilege.”

In the case at bar, the Frosecutar's indtive In obtaining an Order transporting Jessie
Llayd Misskelley, Jr. to Cralghead County "to testify™ is quite dear. Having besn
informed by Mr. Stidham that his client was not golng to bestify against Mr. Echols
and Mr. Baldwin, he sought to bolgtar his weak case by drawing inferenees in the
minds of potentlal jurors in Cralghead County that Jessie Lioyd Misskellay, Ir.
"might" testify. This mave gave the prosecuter an opportunity to aczomplish
another Improper goal. To coerce Jessie Lloyd Misskelley, Jr. into testifying against
his eodefendants despite being informed by Mr. Stidham to the contrary, This
improper cenduct s evidenced by the fact thatafter being infarmed by counsel for
Jessie Lloyd Misskelley, Ir. and by Mr. Misskelley's father that he would not be
Lustifylng, the prosecution obtained the Grder transporting Jessie Lioyd Misskellay,
Jr. soma fivedays prior to Jury selection, and almost two weeks prior ta his being
needed at trial. While It is not uncommon for prisoners fram the ADC to be moved
to 3 county jail to testify, it is quite uncommon for 3 State prisoner to e moved
this far In advance. This "advance time™ gave the prosecution an opportunity to
workon Jessie Lioyd Misskelley, Ir. by violating his Fifth and Sixth Amendment
Rights. The Craighead County Shertff's Deputy advising Jessie Lloyd Misskalley, Jr.
on February 17, 1994, that he*should testify” In the trial of his codefendants andhis
promise that the Court would "drop [some] charges™ if he did testify demonstiates
a consclous and calclated attempt to dreumvent the Fifth and Sixth Amendment
Rights of Jessie Lloyd Misskelley, Ir. Sald conduct is certainly Imputed to the
Frosecuting Attorney whether or not he actually knew It or not.

Two things Indicate that the Prosecutor had actual knowledae of the misconduct.
First, Jessie Lioyd Misskellay, Jr. was taken dirscily to Deputy Prosecuter Joe
Calvin's office in Rector desplte defense counsel objections, Secondly, the
Prosscuting Attarney, himself, M, Brent Davis, was present In Mr. Calvin's offica
when Mr. Misskelley arrived at the office. The Prosecutions deliberata conduct in
circumventing Jessle Lloye Misskelley Jr.'s Fifth and Sixth Amendment Rights ars
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further demonstrated by the fact that when Mr. Stidham and Mr. Crow arrived in
Rector, Arkansas at approximately 7:00 p.m, they discoverad that Prosecuting
Attorney Brant Davis and Deputy Prosecutor Joe Calvin had already communicated
with thelr cllent without their knowledge and consent. Thal sald altorneys were
allowed to communicate with thelr client, Jessle Lioyd Misskelley, Ir., for only
approximately fifteen minutes when Prosecutors Davis and Calvir burst into the
conference room and demanded to tzke a statement from Jessie Uoyd Misskelley,
Jr. Stidham and Crow cbjected to the interference and informed prosecutors that
they wished to visit with their client uninterruptad. Prosscutors then expressad thelr
fear, in the presence of Jessie Lioyd Misskeliey, Ir,, that Defense Attorneys would
convince Jessie Lioyd Misskelley, Ir. to decline to meke a statement to them. Jessie
Lieyd Misskaliey, Jr. then stood up and announced that he wished to make a
statamant In spita of the advise and counsal of his attameys, and sxited the
confarence ropm 3nd refused to talk to his attornays further. The Honorable Judge
David Burnett was teleplioned at which time Mr. Stidham volced his objections to
his client being present in the prosecutors office in the first place, that his presence
at the prosecutor's office was o violation of his client's Constituticnal rights, that Mr.
Misskelley had requested psychiatric care on Tuesday, February 15, 1994, that he
qusstioned Jessie Lloyd Misskelley, Jr's current mental competency and requested a
mental evaluation, and that lessie Lloyd Misskelley, Ir, had Informed him on
Tugsday, February 15, 1994 that he did not wish to testify against his
codefendants. The Court denled the objections and request for a mental evaluation
by Mr, Stidham and permittad the Prosecution to offer use immunity to Jessie Ligyd
Misskallay, Jr. and taks his statement over said objections, The Progecutars
masating with Jassia Linyd Misskellay, Ir. on Friday, Saturday and Sunday without
the knowledge and consent of his attorneys is @ gross instance of misconduct, The
Defendants anticipate that the Prosecution will argue that they did not vivlate Jessie
Lioyd Misskellay, Jr.'s Fifth Amendment Rights because they granted him "usa
immunity" before taking a statament from him, and therefore nothing he says can
he usad against him. The Defendant’s submit that the Court should analyze how
this grant of Immunity was affactuatad, The arant of mmunity was abtained by
prosecutorial misconduct, e, violgtion of Jessie Lioyd Misskelley, Jr.'s Sixth
Amendment rights. Had the prosecutor acted properly he would hava never been in
a position to even offer the Immunity to Jessie Llayd Misskelley, Jr. The "but for®
tast the prosacutars deployed In closing arguments at the trial of Jessie Lioyd
Misskellay, Ir. s applicable here. In othar wards, "hut for” the prosecutar vinlating
Jessie Lioyd Misskelley, Ir.'s Sixth Arhendmenkt rights, he would have naver been in
& position to even offer use immunity to Jessie Lioyd Misskelley, Ir. The Prosecution
shauld not be allowed, andthls Court should not. condone, the viglation of one
codefendant's rights to the axtreme detriment of the other codefendants. In fact, -
the Courts have long condemnead the viglation of the defendant’s right In any
respect, This leads us to the next anticipated line of defense the Prosecution will
deploy to explain thelr conduct, the standing of the defendants to argue this
mation.,

The Defendants, Damien Wayne Echols and Charles Jason Baldwin, have standing
to argue this Motion because the prosecutor's misconduct did not just violate lessia
Uoyd Misskelley, Jr.'s rights but their own as well. In viclating Jessle Misskelley's
rights the Frosecution also violsted the rights of Damien Wayne Echols and Gharles
Jason Baldwin, That the abovementioned conduct and actions of the Proseciition are
3 willful and deliberate attempt to circumvent, and make a mockery of, the Jaw as
set forth In paragraph twentytwo (22) of the Defendant's Motion, and to droumvent
the due process rights of sald defendants, their right to receive z fair and (mpartial
triel and thelr right to confront the witnzsses against them. That sald conduct on
the part of the Prosecution, regardless of whether or not Jessia Lioyd Misskelley, Jr,
actually testifles agalnst his codefendants, serinusly undermines and impairs, or
could actually makes It Impossibie, for Damien Wayne Echals or Charles Jason
Baldwin to receive a fair and impartial jury trial due to the fact that sald conduct on
the part of the prosecution constitutes a "grandstand play” which hius improperty
drew sttention to Jessle Lloyd Misskelley, 1r.'s alleged confession which he
submiitted throughout the course of his trial was coerced. Potential jurors will niow
place emphasis on this improper "grandstand play® by the Prosecutor due to pretrial
publicity.In summary, the prosecutor's role identified In Flayd, supra, clearly stats
that the Prosecutor has 3 duty to use falr and honorable means ta secure a
conviction and to promote & falr and Impartial trial. The Defendants submit that
nothing In the conduct of the Frosecutian sat farth herein is fair or honorzsble, and it
certainly does not promaote 3 fair and impartial tral.

Tha Court states In United States v. Serubo, 604 F.2d 807, 817 (3d Cir, 1978):

“Far while In theory 2 trial provides the defendant with a full epporturilty to cantest
and disprove uf the charge agalnst him, in practice, the handiing of an Indictment
will alten have a devastating personal and professlonal impact that a later dismissal
aracquittal can naver undo. Where the potential for abuse is so great, and
consequences of a mistaken indictment so serlous, the ethical responsibilities of the
prosecutor and obligation of the judiclary to protect sgainst the appsarance of
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urifalmess are correspondingly Relghtened...We suspect that dismissal of an
indictmant may ba virtually the only effective way to encourage compllance with
these ethical standards, and to protect defendants from abuse of the grand jury
process."

The matter at hand Is not a grand jury indictment, however, the differance should
not lessen the ethical responsibliities of the prosecutor to protect zgalnst unfaimess
in promoticn of a fair and impartial trizl and the basic fundameintal concept of
“presumption of Innocence until proven gullty.”

Further, the ethical responsibility of protecting Jessie Lloyd Misskelley's Sixth
Amendment right to assistance of counsel as afforded by the United States
constitution cannot be averlooked, In addition, the impropriety of the prosecution
has Invaded and compromlised these Defendants' constitutianal rights by maocking
ethical considerations and acceptable protocol. The State has caused aggravated
circumstanees prejudicing these Defendants resulting in prosecutorial misconduct
and/or overrzaching. As stated In United States v, Kessler, 530 F.2d 1246, 1256
(5th Cir. 1976):

“To find ‘prasecutarial averreaching,' the government must have through 'gross
negligance or intentional misconduct’ caused aggravated clrcumstances to develop
which 'serfously prejudiced a defendant’ causing him to 'reasenably conciude that g
continuation of the talnted proceeding would result in a conviction,"' citing United
Statas v. Dinitz, 424 U.S. 600, 96 S.Ct. at 1080, 47 L,Ed.2d at 274, 44 US.LW. at
4312 See also United Stetes v, Bizzord, 493 F.Supp. 1084 (1980),

In order to deter the prosecutorial misconduct and/or overreaching, this matter
should be dismissed ta preserve faimess, as noted In United States v, Carrasco, 786
F.2d 1452 (9th Cir. 1986) wharein the Court stated:

"The purpase of a dismissal may be to preserve falmess to the individual defendant,
t deter prosecutorial misconduct, or to protect fudicial integrity.*

The Defendants pray that the Court grant their Motion,
Respectiully submittad,
DAMIEN WAYNE ECHOLS, DEFENDANT

By:

Val Price, Barz

Court appolnted Attorney
[address]

Janesharo, Arkansas 72403
(501) 9326226

CHARLES JASON BALDWIN, DEFENDANT

By:

George Wadley, Bar@
Caurt Appalnted Attorpey
[addrass]

Jonesboro, Arkansas 72403
(501} 9721100

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

We, Val Price, and George Wadlay Court appointed Attorneys for the Defendants
herein, do hereby cortify that I have sarved a copy of the foregolny plesding upsh
Brent Davis, Frosecuting Attorney, by parsonally delivering same to him this
day of February, 1994,

Val Price [signad)

Gearge Wadley [signed]

As you can see, the atmosphere in which Misskelley yave this statement were not
exactiy Constitutional or free from coercion. An Qfficer from the Cralghead County
Sheriff’s offfce had convinced Misskelley that his lawyers (me) had soid him out and
that i he would testify agalnst Echols & Baldwin he would get aut of prison. He was
promised sex and alcohol In exchange for his testimony by this same officer.
Miaskelley kater told me that prosecutars had bought him clgaretres by the carton
when they met with him secrelly. Aftar denying the mation set forth above, the
Court, citing that it felt that I had lost my objectivity In the case, appofated snother
lawyer to meel with Misskellay to make sure he didn't want to testily against his co-
defendants. Misskelley agaln statad that he would not testily. In fact, Misskaltay told
us that he couldn’t testify hecause to say what prosecutors wantzd him to say would
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be a lie,

Absplutaly nothing Misskelley told the officers or prosecutars would aver ba

admicsibie against him. Prosecutors would only give up harassing Misskelley for his

testimony when I threatened to hold a press conference and disciose thelr effarts to

entice his testimany. As I stated previously, Mr. Misskelley Is a mentally B

handicapped person who Is quite suagestible, [t doesn't take much effort to gat him
1o say or do anything at ali,

-~ Dan Stidham June 27, 18893
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